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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Gross Income (Rs. In Crores)

759

1193

1409
1520

1672

1900

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Profit Before Tax (Rs. In Crores)

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

43
57 55

47
56

140

Total Capital Employed (Rs. In Crores)

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

268

380

495

426

529
504

Net Worth (Rs. In Crores)

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

86

114

142

171

204

276



5 5

SIX YEAR PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE
Rs. In lakhs

PARTICULARS 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

A.  OPERATING RESULTS

     GROSS INCOME 75916 119318 140930 151989 167238 189971

      PROFIT BEFORE DEPN. INT. & TAX 7077 10264 12689 12867 12115 20934

     PROFIT BEFORE INT. & TAX 5899 8682 10610 10445 9748 16946

     PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT) 4337 5717 5475 4727 5592 13957

     PROFIT AFTER TAX (PAT) 2982 3917 3975 3568 4745 10379

     DIVIDENDS 766 957 1034 574 1225 2588

     DIVIDEND TAX 130 159 168 98 208 527

     RETAINED PROFITS 2086 2801 2773 2896 3312 7264

B.  FINANCIAL STATUS

     GROSS FIXED ASSETS 19232 24991 29312 30257 37001 44644

     NET FIXED ASSETS 11538 16495 19873 21643 24977 28550

     INVESTMENTS 261 261 1982 1928 1926 3201

     NET CURRENT ASSETS 14977 21206 27629 19059 26000 18679

     SHARE CAPITAL 766 766 766 766 766 766

     RESERVES AND SURPLUS 7817 10618 13392 16288 19599 26863

     NET WORTH 8583 11384 14158 17054 20365 27629

     LOAN FUNDS 17446 25581 34029 23298 30352 20537

     DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) 747 997 1297 2278 2186 2264

    TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED       26776 37962 49484 42630 52903 50430

C. KEY RATIOS

     PBDIT TO NET SALES (%) * 9.29 8.36 8.62 5.75 7.38 10.93

     PBIT TO NET SALES (%)   * 7.61 6.90 7.14 4.11 5.95 8.81

     PBT TO NET SALES (%)    * 5.38 4.17 3.48 0.24 3.29 7.22

      PBIT TO AV. CAPITAL EMPLOYED 

(%)*
21.43 23.13 22.93 13.17 20.68 32.08

      RETURN ON AVERAGE NET 

WORTH  (%)
39.55 39.23 31.13 22.86 25.36 43.25

     EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs.) 38.94 51.15 51.92 46.59 61.97 135.55

     DIVIDEND PER SHARE (Rs.) # 11.70 14.57 15.70 8.77 18.72 40.68

     DIVIDEND PAY OUT  (%) # 30.04 28.49 30.22 18.83 30.21 30.01

     BOOK VALUE PER SHARE (Rs.) 112.09 148.67 184.90 222.72 265.96 360.83

      DEBT EQUITY RATIO 

(NO. OF TIMES)
2.03 2.25 2.40 1.37 1.49 0.74

* Excluding other income

# Including dividend tax
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 32nd annual report and the audited accounts for the year 

ended 31st March, 2015

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Rs. in crores)

Details
Year ended 

31.3.2015

Year ended 

31.3.2014

Sales & Other Income 1899.71 1672.38

Profit before finance cost and depreciation 209.34 121.15

Less : Finance Cost 29.89 41.56

          Depreciation 39.88         23.67

Profi t after fi nance cost and depreciation 139.57 55.92

Less : Provision for 

            Income tax 35.00 9.39

          Deferred tax 0.78 (0.91)

Profit after tax           103.79 47.45

Surplus brought forward from Previous Year 164.04 135.72

Appropriations :

Dividend payable 25.88 12.25

Dividend Tax payable 5.27 2.08

Transfer to General Reserve - 4.80

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 236.68 164.04

OPERATIONS

TVS Srichakra Ltd witnessed a revenue growth of 13% during FY 2015, despite challenging economic 

environment and auto sector slow-down. 

On a standalone basis, your Company achieved total net sales and Other Income of Rs.1899.71 crore as 

against Rs.1672.38 crore during the previous fi nancial year. EBITDA was at Rs.209.34 crore as compared 

to Rs. 121.15 crore during the previous fi nancial year. The net profi t for the year under review was 

Rs.103.79 crore as against Rs.47.45 crore in the previous fi scal, a growth of almost 118%.

During the year, the Company recovered material price increase by price hike of its products, therefore 

was able to maintain its margin. Further, weak rupee helped in higher export realization.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS 

Consolidated income for the year ended 31st March, 2015 increased by 12% to Rs.2180.51 crore as 

compared to Rs.1939.30 crore for the previous year ended 31st March, 2014. 

Consolidated net sales for the year ended 31st March, 2015 were Rs.2176.43 crore as against Rs.1937.51 

crore for the year ended 31st March, 2014, representing a growth of 12%.

Consolidated profi t before tax was Rs.137 crores for the year ended 31st March, 2015 as against Rs.77 

crores for the year ended 31st March, 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

Consolidated profi t after tax was Rs.99.63 crores for the year ended 31st March, 2015 as against Rs.56.58 

crores for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs.33.80 per equity share of Rs.10/- each (338%)  for 

the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2015 for the approval of the shareholders, at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting (AGM). The total outgo for the current year amounts to Rs.31.15 crores including dividend distribution 

tax of Rs. 5.27 crores as against Rs.14.33 crores including dividend distribution tax of Rs. 2.08 crores in the 

previous year.   

SHARE CAPITAL 

The paid up equity capital as on 31st March, 2015 was Rs.7,65,70,500/-.  During the year under review, 

the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor 

sweat equity.

FINANCE

Cash and cash equivalent as at March 31, 2015 was at Rs.9.42 crores. The Company continues to focus on 

judicious management of its working capital, Receivables, inventories and other working capital parameters 

were kept under strict check through continuous monitoring.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31st 

March, 2015.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments made by the Company is given in the notes to the fi nancial statements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and The Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 read with various clarifications issued by Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, the Company has undertaken CSR activities in the areas of education, 

agriculture, health and sanitation.  These projects are largely in accordance with Schedule VII 

of the Act and the details are contained in the “Annual Report on CSR Activities” given in 

Annexure 1.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

The Company has engaged the services of the Internal Auditor and continued to implement their suggestions 

and recommendations made by the internal auditor to improve the control environment and corrective 

actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.
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BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Key Business Risks are identifi ed by the Company and reviewed by the Senior Management on a regular 

basis.  In addition, the Board of Directors review the key risks identifi ed and the mitigation plan initiated 

by the Company on a quarterly basis.   The list of key risks is also revisited and modifi ed as per the 

changing scenario.  

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and 

mismanagement. 

The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and are also 

posted on the Company’s website (www.tvstyres.com).

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The following companies continue as subsidiaries of the Company and their audited accounts have been 

consolidated with those of the Company as on 31st March, 2015.

a) TVS Srichakra Investments Limited

b) TVS Europe Distribution Limited and its subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As stipulated by clause 32 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India form part of this Annual Report.

The statement containing the salient features of the fi nancial statement of Company’s subsidiary(s) as 

referred to sub-section 3 of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 1 is given in Annexure 2.

DIRECTORS

Directors liable to retire by rotation

Mr V Ramakrishnan, Director, will be retiring at this Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment.

The brief resume of the aforesaid Director and other information have been detailed in the notice 

convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company.  An appropriate resolution for his re-appointment 

is being placed for approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  Your Directors 

recommend his re-appointment as Director of the Company. 

Appointment of Managing Director 

Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhran was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company, effective 25.8.2015, 

by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 23.5.2015, on such terms and conditions, for a period of 

fi ve years,   as recommended  by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,  subject to the approval 

of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

Appointment of new Independent Director

Mr A Arumugam was appointed as Additional Independent Director subject to approval of the shareholders.

Mr A Arumugam does not suffer any of the dis-qualifi cations mentioned in sub-section 6 of Section 149 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and is not disqualifi ed under Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

The brief resume of Mr A Arumugam and other information have been detailed in the notice convening 

the Annual General Meeting of the Company.  Appropriate resolution for his appointment is being placed 

for approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

Necessary notice has already been received from a shareholder proposing his candidature to be appointed 

as a Director not liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Your Directors recommend his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company till 2.12.2019.

Independent Directors Declaration

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, as required pursuant to 

Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, stating that they satisfy the criteria of independence as laid 

down in Section 149(6) of the Act and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Board Evaluation 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board 

has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as 

well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration Committees. The manner 

in which the evaluation has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report.

Remuneration Policy

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for 

selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Remuneration 

Policy and other details are  stated in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration 

As per section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the details pertaining to remuneration in respect 

of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel / Company Secretary / Employees are given in Annexure 3.

Board Meetings

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors.

During the year ten Board Meetings and fi ve Audit Committee Meetings were convened  and held. 

The details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the 

Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. For other details please refer 

Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards  had been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them  consistently and made judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 

of the Company at the end of the fi nancial year and of the profi t and loss of the Company for that 

period; 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

c) the directors had taken proper and suffi cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

e) the directors, had laid down internal fi nancial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal fi nancial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DELISTING OF COMPANY’S SHARES FROM MADRAS STOCK EXCHANGE

Madras Stock Exchange Limited (MSE), vide its letter dated 22nd December, 2014  communicated  to 

the Company their decision to withdraw the admission granted to the dealings on the Exchange for the 

Equity  Shares of the Company for voluntary delisting and to remove the name of the Company from the 

Listed Securities of the MSE, with effect from 22nd December, 2014.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year, the Company maintained healthy, cordial and peaceful industrial relations with the 

workers and employees at all levels.

There are no cases reported under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013, during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the year, the Company did not enter into any material transaction with related parties, under 

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. All transactions entered into by the Company with the related 

parties were in the ordinary course  of business and on  an arm’s length basis. Form AOC-2, as required 

under Section 134 (3)(h) of the Act, read with Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, is  

given in Annexure 4.

The Related Party Transaction Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded in the Company’s website at 

the web link http://www.tvstyres.com/policy/RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTION%20POLICY.pdf

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the fi nancial position of the Company occurred between 

the ends of the fi nancial year to which these fi nancial statements relate on the date of this report.

AUDITORS 
Statutory Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, M/s Sundaram & Srinivasan, Chartered Accountants, 

Madurai, are being appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, from the conclusion of the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.  

The Company has received a letter from them stating that the appointment, if made, shall be within the 

prescribed limit under Section 139(1) and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.  The Audit Committee and 

the Board recommend the appointment of   M/s Sundaram & Srinivasan, Chartered Accountants, Madurai, 

as the Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of the  ensuing Annual General Meeting 

till the conclusion of the next  Annual General Meeting. 
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Cost Auditor 

The Board of Directors have appointed Dr. I Ashok, Cost Accountant, Madurai as Cost Auditor for 

carrying out the cost audit of the Company for the fi nancial year  2015-16 subject to the approval of the 

Central Government. 

The Company has received a letter from the said Cost Accountant, stating that the appointment, if made, 

will be within the prescribed limit under the Companies Act, 2013.

For the fi nancial year under review, the Cost Audit Report will be fi led with the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs portal within the stipulated time in terms of Companies (Cost Accounting) Records Rules, 2011.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. N Balachandran, 

a Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.  

The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed as Annexure 5.  

The Company had at the AGM held on 25th September, 2013 had transacted a business pertaining to 

commission payable for a period of fi ve years to non-executive directors. The resolution was passed 

unanimously by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, but the resolution was mentioned as 

an Ordinary Resolution instead of Special Resolution. The Company proposes to ratify the same at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting by passing a Special Resolution. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a separate section on corporate 

governance practices followed by the Company, together with a certifi cate from the Company’s Auditors 

confi rming compliance forms an integral part of this Report.

The Managing Director and the Vice President – Finance (CFO) of the Company have certifi ed to the Board on 

fi nancial statements and other matters in accordance with Clause 49(IX) of the Listing Agreement pertaining to 

CEO / CFO certifi cation for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2015.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 

outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies 

(Accounts) Rule, 2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure 6.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as  

Annexure 7.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of The Companies Act 2013 and read with Rule 5 

of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of 

employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of The Companies Act 

2013 the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the 

information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered 
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Offi ce of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member 

may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate 

trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-

clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by 

the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information 

in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is 

responsible for implementation of the Code.

All Board of Directors and the designated employees have confi rmed compliance with the Code.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Directors thank the bankers, customers, dealers and vendors for their support and encouragement.

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by the employees 

which made it possible for the Company to achieve these results. 

The Directors also thank the investors for their continued faith in the Company.

       For and on behalf of the Board

  R NARESH SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN

  EXECUTIVE VICE CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR

Madurai

23.5.2015

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE 1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s 

CSR policy, including overview of 

projects or programmes proposed 

to be undertaken and a reference to 

the web-link to the CSR policy and 

projects or programmes

Women Development Programme – Promoting 

education, employment enhancing vocational skills 

training etc.

Children Programme – promoting education including 

special education, vocational skills etc., 

Environment & Sanitation awareness and general health 

programmes.

The Company has framed a CSR Policy  in compliance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

same is uploaded in the Company’s website.

Weblink :  http://www.tvstyres.com/policy/CSR%20

POLICY.pdf

2. Composition of the CSR Committee Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran (MD)

Mr. P Vijayaraghavan

Mr. Rasesh R Doshi (Independent Director)

3. Average net profi t of the Company 

for last three fi nancial years

Rs. 4935.29 lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two 

percent of the amount as in item 3 

above)

Rs. 98.70 lakhs

5. Details of CSR spent during the fi nancial year

a) Total amount spent during the year Rs. 88.41 lakhs

b) Amount unspent, if any Rs. 10.29 lakhs

This amount will be spent in 2015 as a part of 2014 

CSR expenditure.
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c) Manner in which the amount spent during the fi nancial year

Rs.in lakhs

Sl. 

No.

CSR project 

or activity 

identifi ed

Sector in 

which the 

project is 

covered

Projects or 

programs

Amount 

outlay 

(budget) 

project 

or 

program 

wise

*Amount 

spent on the 

projects or 

programs

Cumulative 

expenditure 

upto the 

reporting 

period

Amount 

spent - 

Direct 

or 

through 

imple-

menting 

agency

  1)  Local area 

or other

Sub heads  

  2)  Specify the 

State and 

district 

where 

projects or 

programs 

was 

undertaken

1)  Direct 

expenditure 

on 

projects or 

programs

2) over head

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

1 Women 

development 

Programme.

Promoting 

education,  

employment 

enhancing 

vocational 

skills, training, 

etc among 

women 

Education Madurai 

District, 

Tamil Nadu

10.53 22.81 22.81 Arogya 

Welfare 

Trust, 

Madurai

2 Children 

Programmes

Promoting 

Education 

including 

special 

education, 

employment 

enhancing 

vocational 

skills, 

computer 

learning/

usage  skills etc 

among children

Education Madurai 

District, 

Tamil Nadu

20.34 19.34 19.34 Arogya 

Welfare 

Trust, 

Madurai

ANNEXURE 1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

3 Environment &

Sanitation 

awareness and 

general health 

programmes

Health & 

Sanitation

Madurai 

District, 

Tamil Nadu

2.16 2.18 2.18 Arogya 

Welfare 

Trust, 

Madurai

4 Vocational 

Skills on 

catering, 

bakery, Agri 

based activities 

etc for women

Education 

& 

Agriculture 

Madurai 

District, 

Tamil Nadu

15.92 1.47 1.47 Arogya 

Welfare 

Trust, 

Madurai

5 Making 

available safe 

drinking water 

Health Madurai 

District, 

Tamil Nadu

24 23.66 23.66 Arogya 

Welfare 

Trust, 

Madurai

6 Library Halls 

extension 

Project

Education Madurai 

District, Tamil 

Nadu

6 - -

7 Education for 

special children

Education Madurai 

District, Tamil 

Nadu

30 15.07 15.07 Arogya 

Welfare 

Trust, 

Madurai

8 Balance - Kept 

as Reserve

Madurai 

District, Tamil 

Nadu

11.05    

TOTAL 98.70 88.41 88.41

6. Reasons for not spending the amount

  As a good corporate citizen, the Company has been implementing societal activities since many 

decades and has spent / committed a signifi cant amount for CSR activities which is eligible under 

the CSR rules. As the implementation of the project is getting delayed due to various reasons, the 

unspent amount for the fi nancial year  2014-15 of Rs. 10.29 lakhs will be carried over and utilised in 

the fi nancial year  2015-16 alongwith the CSR expenditure for the fi nancial year 2015-16. 

7.  The CSR Committee confi rms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in 

compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN

CHAIRMAN OF THE CSR COMMITTEE /

MANAGING DIRECTOR

ANNEXURE 1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.) Rs.in lakhs



17 17

ANNEXURE 2 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STATEMENT CONTAINING THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES - FORM AOC I

[Pursuant to fi rst proviso to Sub-Section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule  5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(Rs. in Cr) except % of Shareholding

Sl.No 1 2 3 4

Name of the Subsidiary TVS 

Srichakra 

Investments 

Limited

TVS 

Europe 

Distribution 

Ltd

Universal 

Components 

UK Ltd *

Wrea 

Hurst Parts 

Distribution 

Limited**

Reporting Period for the subsidiary 

Concerned, if different from Holding 

Company's reporting period

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as 

on the last date of relevant fi nancial year 

in case of Foreign subsidiaries

Not 

Applicable

GBP                                              

GBP = 

Rs.91.62

GBP                                       

GBP = 

Rs.91.62

GBP                                              

GBP = 

Rs.91.62

Share Capital 2.05 51.66 0.46 0.01

Reserves and Surplus -1.05 -7.94 55.48 0.16

Total assets ( Excluding Investments) 23.57 3.58 118.06 0.25

Total Liabilities 34.60 64.44 62.21 0.08

Investments 12.03 104.56 0.07 -

Turnover 0.34 1.24 260.03 0.24

Profi t before Taxation -0.32 -5.26 6.65 9.91

Provision for Taxation - 1.03 4.22 -

Profi t after taxation -0.32 -4.23 2.43 9.91

Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil

% of Shareholding 100% 58.97% 95% 100%

* Held through TVS Europe Distribution Ltd

** Held through Universal Components UK Ltd

1) Universal Components US (Inc), is yet to commence operations.

2) Names of the Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil.

3)  The following subsidiaries - Kellet (UK) Ltd (100%), Universal Components UK (Corporate Trustee) 

Ltd (100%), Refl ected Light Limited (100%), Pollard Beaumont Limited (100%), European Truck and 

Trailer Limited (100%), Vanleuwen Tyres and Wheels, B.V.Holl (30%) are not consolidated since  

there are no transactions during the year 2014-15.

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH As per our report attached

Managing Director Executive Vice Chairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837 DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

  Firm Registration No. 004207 S

G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN K S NARAYANASWAMY

Vice President - Finance Secretary Partner

  M.No. 8593

Place : Madurai 

Date : 23.5.2015
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PART B : ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
Statement Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 related to Associate companies and 

Joint ventures

Rs. in Crores

Name of Associate/Joint Ventures ZF Electronics TVS (India) Private Ltd*

1.  Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2015

2.   Share of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on the year end

50%

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 0.54

Extent of Holding 50%

3.  Description of Signifi cant Infl uence Jointly Controlled Entity

4.   Reason why associate /Joint Venture is not 

Consolidated

Not Applicable

5.   Net worth attributable to shareholding as per 

latest audited balance sheet

8.22

6.  Profi t and Loss for the year before Tax -1.19

i) Considered in Consolidation -1.19

ii) Not Considered in Consolidation Nil

* Held through TVS Srichakra Investments Limited

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH As per our report attached

Managing Director Executive Vice Chairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837 DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

  Firm Registration No. 004207 S

G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN K S NARAYANASWAMY

Vice President - Finance Secretary Partner

     M.No. 8593

Place : Madurai

Date : 23.5.2015

ANNEXURE 2 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE 3 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) & (ii)  The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees 

of the Company for the fi nancial year and the percentage increase in remuneration of each 

Director, Chief Financial Offi cer, Chief Executive Offi cer,  Company Secretary or Manager, if 

any, in the fi nancial year:

Sl. 

No.

Name of the Directors / 

Key Managerial Personnel

Ratio to Median

Remuneration 

(times)

Increase / 

Decrease 

in Remuneration

1. Sri S Narayanan

(ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 17.12.2014)

2.26 14.29%

2. Sri R Naresh

Executive Vice Chairman

148.96 284.66%

3. Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran

Managing Director

126.35 84.94%

4. Sri M S Viraraghavan 5.03 25.89%

5. Sri  N H Atthreya

(resigned from the Board w.e.f. 8.6.2014)

1.29 (67.74%)

6. Sri Sitaram Rao Valluri

(Resigned from the Board w.e.f. 7.7.2014)

0.85 (57.19%)

7. Sri P Vijayaraghavan 5.16 25.57%

8. Sri H Janardana Iyer 5.00 26.59%

9. Sri V Ramakrishnan 2.76 Not Applicable

10. Sri Rasesh R Doshi 4.86 Not Applicable

11. Sri A Arumugam 1.06 Not Applicable

12. Sri P Srinivasan

Company Secretary

Not Applicable 29.55%

13. Sri G V Mahadevan

Chief Financial Officer

Not Applicable 19.65%

iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year : 23.51%

iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company : 2900

v) Explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance: 

  On an average, employees received an increase of 23.80% during the fi nancial year 2014-15.  The 

remuneration components include a fair proportion of fi xed and variable pay.  The increase in fi xed 

pay is periodically reviewed while the increase in variable pay is broadly aligned to the Company’s 

performance during the fi nancial year.

vi)   Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 

Company – Profi t before Tax   Rs. in Crores

Particulars
Managing 

Director

Executive Vice 

Chairman

in the cadre of 

Managing Director

Chief 

Financial 

Officer

Secretary Total

Remuneration 4.00 4.73 0.36 0.29 9.38

Remuneration

(as % of PBT)
2.87% 3.39% 0.26% 0.20% 6.72%



20 20

vii)  Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of 

the current fi nancial year and previous fi nancial year and percentage increase over decrease in the 

market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company 

came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the 

variations in the net worth of the Company as at the close of the current fi nancial year and previous 

fi nancial year :

Particulars As at 31.3.2015 As at 31.3.2014 Increase

Closing  price of share at BSE (Rs.) 1536.75 302.25 408.44%

Market Capitalisation (Rs. in crores) 1176.69 231.43 408.44%

Price Earnings Ratio 11.34 4.88 132.41%

viii)  Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last fi nancial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 

remuneration and justifi cation thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 

increase in the managerial remuneration :

  The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2014-15 was 23.80%.  

Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was 190.42%.

(ix)   Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of 

the Company:

 Please refer point no. (vi).

(x) Key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:

  Commission within the ceiling of 1% of the net profi ts of the Company, as approved by the shareholders.

xi)   The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not 

directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year – Not 

applicable; and

xii) Affi rmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

  The Board of Director affi rms that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 

Company.

ANNEXURE 3 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE 4 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. AOC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO 
BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 
188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH TRANSACTIONS 
UNDER THIRD PROVISO THERETO

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis. 

  All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were on an arm’s 

length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis.

  The transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties on an arm’s length 

basis were not material in nature.
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ANNEXURE 5 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

N. BALACHANDRAN, B.COM., A.C.S., C/2 YAMUNA FLATS 

COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 16TH STREET

 NANGANALLUR

 CHENNAI - 600061

 PH. No. 22670412  

 CELL: 9444376560

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED  31.03.2015
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,

The Members

TVS Srichakra Limited

CIN : L25111TN1982PLC009414

TVS Building,

No 7B, West Veli Street,

Madurai- 625001.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by TVS Srichakra Limited (hereinafter called the company).  

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verifi cation of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its offi cers, 

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report  that in my 

opinion, the company has, during the year under audit  covering the fi nancial year ended on 31.03.2015 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter.

I  have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained 

by the Company  for the fi nancial year ended on 31.03.2015 according to the provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(II) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(III) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed there under;

(IV)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(V)  The Following Regulation and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act,1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

 a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 1992; 

 c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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(VI) Other laws  specifi cally applicable to the company

 a. Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991,

 b. Hazardous Wastes ( Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 and amendment Rules 2003,

 c. Energy Conservation Act, 2001,

 d. Consumer Protection Act, 1986,

 e. Legal Metrology Act, 2009,

 f. Trade Marks Act, 1999,

 g. Patents Act, 1970,

 h. Designs Act, 2000,

 i. Indian Boilers Act, 1923

 j. Special Economic Zones Regulations 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(I)  The Ministry of corporate affairs has not notifi ed applicable Secretarial Standards under companies 

Act 2013 and hence the same is not applicable during the year under audit;

(II)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange, Bombay Stock 

exchange and Madras Stock Exchange (MSE)*. During the period under review the Company has 

complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 

above.  

 * shares are de-listed from  MSE consequent to its closure.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.  The changes in the composition 

of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 

with provisions of the Act.

I further report that Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exits for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifi cation on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting.

I further report that commission payable for a period of 5 (fi ve) years to non-executive directors was 

approved in the AGM held on 25-09-2013 by way of an ordinary resolution in place of special resolution.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with size 

and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 

and guidelines.

I further report that during the year under audit, there were no instances of :

a. Public / Rights / Preferential issue of shares / Debentures / sweat equity.

b. Redemption / Buy Back of securities.

c. Merger / Amalgamations / reconstruction.

d. Foreign Technical collaborations.

Place: Chennai   Sd/-

Date:  23.05.2015 Name of Company Secretary in Practice : N Balachandran

 ACS No. : 5113

 C P No  : 3200

Note :  This Report is to be read with the letter of even date by the secretarial auditor , which is enclosed 

to this report. 
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N. BALACHANDRAN, B.COM., A.C.S., C/2 YAMUNA FLATS 

COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 16TH STREET

 NANGANALLUR

 CHENNAI - 600061

 PH. No. 22670412  

 CELL: 9444376560

ANNEXURE A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE

To 

The Members

TVS Srichakra Limited

CIN : L25111TN1982PLC009414

TVS Building,

No 7B, West Veli Street,

Madurai- 625001.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.  Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.  The verifi cation was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are refl ected in secretarial records.  We believe that 

the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verifi ed the correctness and appropriateness of fi nancial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management.  Our examination was limited to the verifi cation of procedures 

on test basis.

6. As Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to be the future viability of the company not 

the effi cacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Chennai   Sd/-

Date:  23.05.2015 Name of Company Secretary in Practice : N Balachandran

 ACS No. : 5113

 C P No  : 3200
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ANNEXURE 6 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY / RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT / TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION/ 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of 
The Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014

A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

a) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy 

 1. ELECTRICAL

   33 KV dedicated line provided by Tamil Nadu Electricity Board resulting in reduction of 

transmission loss to 3.02% from 4.41%. 

 2. THERMAL

  i.  In the 15 TPH Boiler, Sonic shoot blower installed and ID fan impeller replaced to avoid ash 

accumulation in bank tubes portion, resulting in boiler steam generation effi ciency going up 

by 3.5%. 

  ii.  In the 10 TPH Boiler, air pre-heater and Mechanical Dust Collector replaced resulting in 

boiler generation effi ciency going up by 3%. 

  iii.  In the 48” Calendar area, condensate recovery pump installed resulting increased recovery 

of 7.5 KL of water per day.  

  iv.  Separate steam leak correction team formed to control steam leak wastages resulting in 

reduction in wastage to the extent of 0.25 TPH.

  v.  Damaged insulation & identifi ed uninsulated steam lines were insulated resulting in reducing 

thermal heat loss to the extent of 0.2 TPH. 

b) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing the alternate sources of energy 

 Company has generated 67,28,834 units through Wind energy during the year 2014-15.

c)  Additional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction in   consumption of 

energy.  The Company has invested Rs.3.30 Crore in the following :  

 i.  For getting 33 KV dedicated supply from TNEB to reduce power cost & power interruptions, 

completed  during the fi nancial year 2014-15. 

 ii. Lighting Energy Panel installation in all the modules – Under Progress.

 iii.  With new steam fl ow meters in export plant, planned to arrive specifi c steam consumption in 

export plant, and planned to control the steam consumptions with respect to the production.

 iv. Thermography audit has been done for both electrical and steam equipments.
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION:

1. Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation :

  Introduction of new process and product for improving process / product quality and introduction 

of products for OEM and AM.

2. Benefi ts derived as a result of the above efforts :

  Company was able to develop a whole range of new products for OEM, Replacement Market and 

Export Market, in the shortest development cycle time. 

3.  Data relating to imported technology (Technology imported during the last three years reckoned 

from the beginning of the fi nancial year)  - N.A.

4. Expenditure on R&D: Rs. in Crore

a) Capital 2.47

b) Recurring 14.68

c) Total 17.15

d) Total R&D expenditure as a percentage to total turnover 0.90%

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Earnings Exports Rs.206.57 Cr

Outgo Rs.326.44 Cr
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

FORM NO. MGT-9

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) CIN L25111TN1982PLC009414

ii) Registration Date 2nd June, 1982

iii) Name of the Company TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having Share Capital

v) Address of the Registered Office and 

contact details

TVS Building, 7-B West Veli Street, 

Madurai 625 001

Tel : 0452 – 2443300

vi) Whether Listed Company Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

M/s Integrated Enterprises (India) Limited

II Floor, Kences Towers,

No. 1 Ramakrishna Street,

North Usman Road, T Nagar,

Chennai 600017

Tel : 044 – 28140801

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

  All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be 

stated

Sl. 

No.

Name and Description of main 

products / services

NIC Code of the 

Product / Service

% to total 

turnover of the 

Company

1. Tyres and Tubes including road use 

tyres / tubes; this includes, two wheeler 

tyres and tubes, off the road tyres used in 

implements / forklifts / industrial tractors, 

and other machinery(s), non highway 

service tyres such as sand tyres, grader 

tyres, compactor tyres, and vintage tyres, 

Multi Purpose Tyres (MPT), flotation 

tyres, Radial tyres, tubeless tyres, farm 

tyres and tubes used therein and  Solid 

resilient tyres.

221 – manufacture of 

rubber products

2211 – manufacture of 

rubber tyres and tubes

22111 / 22112 / 22113 

and 22119

100%
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl. 

No.

Name and address 

of the Company

CIN / GLN Holding  / 

Subsidiary /

Associate

% of 

shares 

held

Applicable 

Section 

1. TVS Srichakra 

Investments Limited

U65100TN2010PLC074498 Subsidiary 100% 2 (87)

2. TVS Europe Distribution 

Limited

Foreign Company Subsidiary 2 (87)

3. Universal Components 

Ltd

Foreign Company Subsidiary of 

item No. 2

2 (87)

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAK UP AS PERCENTAGE OF 
TOTAL EQUITY)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 

shareholders

No. of shares held at the 

beginning of the year

No. of shares held at the 

end of the year

% 

change 

during 

the 

year

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

shares

A. PROMOTERS

(1) Indian

a) Individual / 

HUF

554017 - 554017 7.24 554017 - 554017 7.24 NIL

b) Central Govt - - - - - -   -  - -

c) State Govt(s) -  - - - - -  -  - -

d) Bodies 

Corporate

2994544 - 2994544 39.11 2994544 - 2994544 39.11 NIL

e) Banks / FI - - - - - -  -  - -

f) Any Other - - - - - -  -  - -

Sub-total 

(A)(1)

3548561 - 3548561 46.34 3548561 - 3548561 46.34 NIL

(2) Foreign  

a) NRIs - 

Individuals

- - - - - - -  - -

b) Other - 

Individuals

- - - - - - -  - -

c) Bodies 

Corporate

- - - - - - -  - -

d) Banks / FI - - - - - - -  - -

e) Any Other - - - - - - -  - -

Sub-total (A)

(2)

- - - - - - - - -
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Category of 

shareholders

No. of shares held at the 

beginning of the year

No. of shares held at the 

end of the year

% 

change 

during 

the 

year

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

shares

Total 

Shareholding of 

Promoter 

(A) = (A)(1) + 

(A)(2)

3548561 - 3548561 46.34 3548561 - 3548561 46.34 NIL

B. PUBLIC

SHARE

HOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - 650 650 0.01 - 650 650 0.01 NIL

b) Banks / FI 3771 800 4571 0.06 6791 800 7591 0.10 0.04

c) Central Govt 94 - 94 - 94 - 94 - NIL

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture 

Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance 

Companies

- - - - - - - - -

g) FIIs 150 1250 1400 0.02 2408 1250 3658 0.05 0.03

h) Foreign 

Venture 

Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i) Others 

(specify)

- - - - - - - - -

 Sub-total 

(B)(1)

4015 2700 6715 0.09 9293 2700 11993 0.16 0.07

(2) Non-

Institutions

a) Bodies 

Corporate

i) Indian 578724 3646 582370 7.61 607489 3646 611135 7.98 0.38

ii) Overseas  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

b) Individuals 

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 

capital upto 

Rs.1 lakh

1790686 973790 2764476 36.10 1875657 895495 2771152 36.19 0.09
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Category of 

shareholders

No. of shares held at the 

beginning of the year

No. of shares held at the 

end of the year

% 

change 

during 

the 

year

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

shares

ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding  

nominal share 

capital in 

excess of Rs. 

1 lakh

690380 35502 725882 9.48 626927 35502 662429 8.65 0.83

c) Others 

(specify)

28596 450 29046 0.38 51330 450 51780 0.68 0.30

Sub-Total 

B(2)

3088386 1013388 4101774 53.57 3161403 935093 4096496 53.50 0.07

Total Public

Share

holding 

B = B (1) + 

B(2)

3092401 1016088 4108489 53.66 3170696 937793 4108489 53.66 - 

C Shares 

held by 

Custodian 

for GDRs & 

ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total 

A + B + C

6640962 1016088 7657050 100 6719257 937793 7657050 100 -

ANNEXURE 7 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 

No.

Shareholder's 

Name

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the 

end  of the year % 

change 

in share-

holding 

during 

the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares

1 T V Sundram 

Iyengar &

Sons Pvt. Ltd

2123115 27.73 N.A. 2123115 27.73 N.A. NIL

2 Sundaram 

Industries Pvt. 

Ltd

750000 9.79 N.A. 750000 9.79 N.A. NIL

3 Ms. Shobhana 

Ramachandhran 

(Promoter cum 

Director)

254051 3.32 N.A. 274051 3.58 N.A. 0.26

4 Sri R Haresh 201320 2.63 N.A. 151320 1.98 N.A. 0.65

5 Nitya Kalyanee 

Investment  Ltd

121429 1.59 N.A. 121429 1.59 N.A. NIL

6 Sri R Naresh 

(Promoter cum 

Director)

97656 1.27 N.A. 127656 1.67 N.A. 0.40

7 Sri R Haresh 945 0.01 N.A. 945 0.01 N.A. NIL

8 Sri R Dinesh 45 0.00 N.A. 45 0.00 N.A. NIL

TOTAL 3548561 46.34 3548561 46.34

iii) Change in Promoter’s Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 

No.
Name of the Shareholder

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

Company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

Company

1 Sri R Naresh 97656 1.28 127656 1.67

At the end of the year 127656 1.67

2 Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran 254051 3.32 274051 3.58

At the end of the year 274051 3.58

3 Sri R Haresh 201320 2.63 151320 1.98

At the end of the year 151320 1.98

ANNEXURE 7 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors / Promoters  and Holders of 

GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. 

No.

For each of the Top 10 

shareholders

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative 

Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

1 Gagandeep Credit Capital Pvt. Ltd 346770 4.53 346770 4.53

2 Nilesh Kishor Shah 92500 1.21 156000 2.04

3 Paramjit Mann 86813 1.13 86813 1.13

4 Rajiv M Doshi 76500 1.00 - -

5 Anvil Fintrade Pvt.Ltd 67585 0.88 67585 0.88

6 Uday Nandlal Shah 65000 0.85 62700 0.82

7 Sharad Nandlal Shah 50000 0.65 50000 0.65

8 Religare Finvest Ltd 48663 0.64 48570 0.63

9 Kishor Nandlal Shah 32500 0.42 - -

10 Shantikumar Girdharlal Shah 32500 0.42 32500 0.42

11 Tejas B Trivedi - - 49805 0.65

12 Finquest Securities Pvt Ltd - - 31699 0.41

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. 

No.

For each of the Directors and 

KMP

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

Company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

Company

1 Sri S Narayanan  - Director * 2195 0.03 - -

2 Sri M S Viraraghavan - Director 900 0.01 900 0.01

At the end of the year   900 0.01

3 Sri N H Atthreya - Director @ 1200 0.02 - -

4 Sri P Vijayaraghavan - Director 150 - 150 -

At the end of the year   150 -

5 Sri G V Mahadevan - KMP 100 - 100 -

 At the end of the year   100 -

The following Directors / Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) did not hold any shares

Sri Sitaram Rao Valluri - Director # 

M/s H Janardana Iyer, V Ramakrishnan, Rasesh R Doshi, A Arumugam - Directors

Sri P Srinivasan, KMP

* Ceased to be a Director with effect from 17.12.2014

@ Resigned from the Board with effect from 8.6.2014

# Resigned from the Board with effect from 1.7.2014

ANNEXURE 7 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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V.  INDEBTEDNESS
Rs. in Crore

Secured 

Loans 

excluding 

Deposits

Unsecured 

Loans
Deposits

Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 

fi nancial year

i) Principal Amount 253.18 50.34 - 303.52

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 253.18 50.34 - 303.52

Change in Indebtedness during the 

fi nancial year

Addition 0.28 - - 0.28

Reduction 48.09 50.34  - 98.43

Net Change -47.81 -50.34 - -98.15

Indebtedness at the end of the 

fi nancial year

i) Principal Amount 205.37 - - 205.37

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i + ii + iii) 205.37 - - 205.37

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR / WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND / OR MANAGER
Rs in Lakhs

Sl. 

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD / WTD  Total 

AmountMs SR Sri R N

1 Gross Salary 105.02 60.80 165.82

a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961

- - -

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 1961

c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of Income 

Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission 296.00 413.00 709.00

- as % of profi t

- others, specify

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total (A) 400.81 473.70 874.51

Ceiling as per the Act

Ms SR - Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhran, Sri RN - Sri R. Naresh - Executive Vice Chairman

ANNEXURE 7 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS
Rs in lakhs

Sl. 

No.

Particulars of 

Remuneration
Name of Directors

Independent Directors Sri M S V Sri N H A Sri S R V Sri H J I Sri R R D Sri AA

1 Fee for attending Board 

Committee Meetings

1.00 - 0.05 0.90 0.45 0.15

2 Commission 15.00 4.10 2.64 15.00 15.00 3.21

3 Others, please specify - - - - - -

Total (1) 15.10 4.10 2.69 15.90 15.45 3.36

Other Non Executive 

Directors

Sri S N Sri P V Sri V R

1 Fee for attending Board 

Committee Meetings

0.15 1.40 0.35

2 Commission 7.05 15.00 8.42

3 Others, please specify - - -

Total (2) 7.20 16.40 8.77

Sri M S V - Sri M.S. Viraraghavan, Sri N H A - Sri N.H. Atthreya, Sri S R V - Sri Sitaram Rao Valluri, 

Sri H J I - Sri H. Janardana Iyer, Sri R R D - Sri Rasesh R Doshi, Sri AA - Sri A. Arumugam

Sri S N - Sri S. Narayanan, Sri P V - Sri P. Vijayaraghavan, Sri V R - Sri V. Ramakrishnan

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

Sl. 

No.
Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial 

Personnel
Total 

Amount
Chief 

Financial 

Offi cer

Company 

Secretary

1 Gross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961

35.93 28.50 64.43

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income Tax Act 1961 - - -

c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of Income Tax 

Act, 1961

- - -

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission - - -

- as % of profi t - - -

- others, specify - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total 35.93 28.50 64.43

VII   PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

   There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of offences for the year ending 31st March, 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Indian tyre industry is more than 75 years old and TVS Srichakra has been able to achieve leadership 

position in the two wheeler tyre category in the country, though being one of the youngest Company in 

this business. The management discussion and analysis given below discusses the key issues of the business.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

GLOBAL TYRE INDUSTRY

Increasing per capita income in developing nations, population growth oriented towards middle class, 

urbanization, infrastructural growth, and the green movement is all expected to drive growth in the 

Industry over the coming years.

This increasing sale of passenger vehicles, two-wheelers and commercial vehicles and the resultant strong 

demand for replacement of these tyres in the After Market, offers signifi cant opportunities for all the 

players in this industry.

While there is enough opportunity, dependency on Original Equipment Manufacturers and volatile 

Raw material prices are likely to posse challenges to the players in this industry. Consumer demand for 

better Fuel effi ciency and their increasing safety awareness is transitioning the industry to move towards 

technology advancement for high performance tyres.

INDIAN TYRE INDUSTRY

India is one of the largest automobile markets in the world, which consequently makes the country one 

of the leading markets for tyres. Indian automobile sector has reported a Compounded Annual Growth 

Rate (CAGR) of about 11% during the period 2009-14. The Indian tyre industry has been reporting 

consistent growth fi gures over the past few years, spurred by the growing passenger vehicles, two and 

three wheeler market. 

The rise in population, disposable income, aspirations of the Indian middle class and increase in the supply 

of vehicle models for the domestic market have been the major factors augmenting growth in the Indian 

tyre industry. In addition, with the emergence of new technology, ultra-modern production facilities and 

availability of raw materials, the sector is poised to grow further. However, the industry has emerged as 

one of the most competitive markets in the world.

TWO WHEELER MARKET

Indian Economy grew by 7.5% in the FY 14-15 (April-December) as per the revised GDP calculation 

methodology. Infl ation came under control mainly due to the steep fall in crude oil prices which 

in turn made the Reserve Bank of India cut rates in the latter half of FY 14-15. During the fi rst 

Half year of FY 14-15, the Two Wheeler industry saw a growth of about 16% Year on Year 

(Y-o-Y) but the growth in the second half, was at 6% Y-o-Y. The overall growth for the full year of 

FY 14-15 was at 10% Y-o-Y.

This growth was primarily driven by the scooter segment which saw a 34% Y-o-Y growth whereas the 

motorcycle segment experienced a growth of just 5%. While the demand for Scooter has been infl uenced 

by the growing female users and the urban growth, the demand for Motorcycles with Low to mid-range 

engine capacity has been due to the tepid growth in the rural side. However, Motorcycles with High 

end engine capacity did witness a positive growth under the infl uence of the growing youth population 

supported through the urban market.
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES

Consistent increase in Two Wheeler sales over the last many years within India and the increasing Exports 

of Two Wheelers from the Indian OEM’s to Africa and Latin America (LATAM) regions provided ample 

opportunity for the two wheeler tyre industry in replacement market and Exports through an increased 

demand. The ability to realize a greater value in these segments also offered the companies in this industry 

a better opportunity to increase their bottom line. 

Increasing Export also offers a natural hedging to Foreign Exchange risks.

Your Company has been able to make good use of these opportunities in increasing the share in the After 

Market, but increase in Exports was marginal.

EXPANSION 

Continuous strong growth rates in the two wheeler industry have also made your Company to expand 

its business and add capacities. Your Company has taken suffi cient proactive steps to increase / plan the 

capacity to meet with the increase in demand over the next few years.

THREAT

While the immediate threats were from the volatile raw material prices, increasing competition in the 

Original Equipment segment and increase in imports of tyres, the larger ones are likely to arise from 

import of high performance tyres to support the increase in premium and super-premium two-wheeler 

sales and the interests evinced by the large tyre players in entering the two wheeler tyre market.

COMPETITION 

In the light of this industry being highly competitive, there is a continuous struggle by all the players to 

gain market share; Cheaper imports from China and South-East countries during the year also added to 

the competitive pressures.

GROWTH

Your Company was able to increase its market share in the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) 

segment and further consolidate the leadership position. In the After-Market segment, your Company 

was able to gain market share and increase its visibility.  Your Company was able to sustain its volumes 

in Export segment in spite of a sluggish demand from European countries.

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

DOMESTIC OEM MARKET 

Your Company registered a growth in excess of the Two and Three Wheeler Industry growth of 9.8% 

in comparison to the volumes of FY 13-14. This growth over the industry was possible due to our 

increased Share of Business (SOB) with major vehicle manufacturers from its current product lines as 

well as through new product additions.

During the year, your Company was successful in soliciting new OEMs as its customers and also made 

further in-roads into the premium segment two wheelers. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)
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AFTER MARKET

Your Company has achieved a signifi cant growth of value in turnover during the year 2014-15 in the After 

Market, in spite of the falling Raw material prices.  This growth has been possible due to increased visibility 

driven by focused advertising efforts, rapid network expansion as well as new product offering undertaken 

during the year. Your Company, in spite of the competition, was able to  end the year with an improved 

Debtors Turnover Ratio as compared to the previous year. Eleven new products were introduced during 

the year with a focus on tubeless tyres in-line with the growing demand from customers. In order to 

expand its reach and increase the service levels, your Company has opened new Depots during the year. 

The recent launch of its new logo has been received well in the market and has also created positive 

vibes in increasing the sales. 

EXPORTS

Your Company has entered new markets for the sale of Off - Highway Tyres and also expanded the 

distribution channel for the sale of two wheeler tyres. Commercial sale of Tractor Radial commenced 

during the year, In order to improve the visibility of the brand, your Company participated in various 

international shows.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK 

Indications of Industry growth forecasts for the FY 2015-16 looks a bit subdued. The two wheeler industry 

is expected to grow at the rate of 5-6%, with the growth of the scooter segment overshadowing the 

Motorcycle segment. However, the yesteryear sales of vehicles will continue to drive the After Market 

segment growth and is estimated to be at 10% over 14-15.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Your Company holds the market leadership position in the OEM segment and plans to hold onto that 

position. In the After market segment your Company has been gaining share and plans to further grow 

its share this year too. To support this growth, your Company has plans to continue its investment in 

brand building. Your Company also plans to invest time and resources towards product innovation for 

release of high performance tyres to the market. Your Company strives to provide the best two wheeler 

conveyance solution in the industry while maintaining low cost of manufacturing.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Your Company’s primary business risks are arising out of its larger presence and orientation towards the 

OEM segment. Continuous availability of trained and skilled manpower is a concern that your Company 

has to deal with.  Though your Company witnessed improvement in power situation in Tamil Nadu during 

the previous year, availability of adequate power is continues to be an area of concern. However, your 

Company has created plans to deal with these risks and concerns. 

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Your Company has plans to introduce High Performance Tyres including Textile radials during this 

year to strengthen the product range, in meeting with the complete demands in the two wheeler tyre 

industry. In addition your Company has also planned for introduction of radial products in the Off-Highway 

agricultural segment.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Company in cognizance of various business risks that it faces has proactively taken steps to mitigate 

these risks.  To achieve distributed and diversifi ed segmental revenue mix, signifi cant efforts are underway 
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to increase the after-market and export business. In order to increase the after-market business your 

Company has taken initiatives for  brand building and improves the top of the mind recall quotient.  A 

separate vertical has been created for brand management with induction of professionals. 

The share of tubeless tyres in two-wheeler market has signifi cantly increased in the FY 2015 and your 

Company believes this trend to accelerate in the coming years. Your Company is fully geared up to cater 

to this surge in demand. Your Company is keeping pace with the trends and has one of the best offering 

in terms of the tubeless products.

Lastly, your Company is consistently monitoring the power and human resources situation, including that 

arising out of the proposed capacity expansions, and taking timely measures to deal with these issues.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 

operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit (IA) function is defi ned in the Internal Audit 

Charter. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman 

of the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the effi cacy and adequacy of internal control 

system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all 

locations of the Company and its subsidiaries.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Company has achieved overall revenue growth of 15% over the previous year.  The domestic segments 

of OE and AM have shown a growth higher than the respective industry growths indicating an increased 

market share. However, growth in exports remained subdued doing the year.

During the year, your Company was able to retain the benefi ts of the falling material prices, which was 

achieved through strong procurement strategies. Strong growth in the After-market as well as rupee 

weakening against Euro for most part of the year resulted in a better realization. These actions along 

with more effective controls on material consumption resulted in a lower material cost compared to 

the previous year.

Wage settlement for a four year term was successfully executed during the year. Increase in wages cost 

as a fall out of this settlement and increases in power costs could be well managed by way of increasing 

the capacity utilization across both the plants at Madurai and Uttarakhand, respectively. This increased 

utilization has also helped the Company keep the other operational costs within control.

Revised credit policies with dealers in the After-market, coupled with a strong working capital management 

has played a crucial role in bringing down the interest costs in comparison to earlier years.

Current in-roads made into the AM as well as the medium and long-term intent of growing the share in 

this segment warranted increased spending on promotional and branding campaigns.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT

The Company has employed more than 2950 employees, on its rolls both direct and indirect, as at the 

end of the year. 

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT INITIATIVES

As a part of Middle management development, program has been rolled out for enhancing the leadership 

skills among the middle level managers. To increase the effectiveness of font line sales members, Sales 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)
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Effectiveness program has been conducted.

Communication meetings, recreation activities have been held to create a cohesive team of energetic & 

motivated employees and maintain harmonial industrial relations.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (OH&S)

Your Company is aiming at ensuring 100% safety in the manufacturing and other related processes. 

Towards this, several  safety awareness programs were conducted for our employees by industrial 

experts periodically. Induction training for all new employees and improved handling of contract labour 

and  permit systems, your Company focusses on prevention of accidents. 

Unsafe conditions are tracked on a perpetual basis and actions initiated to reduce the same. Awareness is 

created amongst the workers to check their individual machines on safety aspects and to initiate corrective 

actions through the Department concerned.

Do’s & don’ts of each machinery, process wise, is displayed  and regular pep talk is also conducted on 

the shop fl oor to create the awareness on safety.

Senior management team is actively involved  as mentors for supporting safety activities to achieve our 

goal as “ZERO ACCIDENT & ZERO HEALTH HAZARDS”.

“NEAR MISS” incidents are captured and  corrective and preventive actions are taken immediately with 

proper  horizontal deployment in other similar work places.

Started following work permit system for height work, hot work, etc., for all employees including contract 

labour to prevent any unsafe act, conditions during their operation.

Conducting regular inspection for all plant machineries available inside our factory including contractors 

for avoiding unsafe conditions.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES

Your Company is committed to Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives and the details of activities 

initiated / completed during the year are given as an Annexure to Directors Report. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s views, projections, 

estimates and expectations may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities 

laws and regulations.  Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied.  Important 

factors  that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include among others, economic 

conditions, global and domestic supply and demand situations, input prices and their availability, changes in 

Government regulat ions, tax laws and other factors such as industrial relations and economic developments 

etc. may infl uence the Company’s operations or performance.
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The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 

2015. 

1.  COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

  The Company believes in ensuring corporate fairness, transparency, professionalism, accountability and 

propriety in total functioning of the Company. Company also believes in the philosophy of continuous 

improvement in all facets of its operations. Budgets, investment proposals, signifi cant developments 

are placed before the Board. Audit, Share Transfer and Shareholder and Investors Committee meets 

in suffi cient intervals to consider aspects relevant to each committee.  

  The Company’s corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened by adopting a Code 

of Business and Ethics and Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading for Board and Senior 

Management Personnel.

  The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential to achieving long-term corporate 

goals and for meeting the needs and aspirations of its stakeholders, including shareholders.

  There are comprehensive internal control management reporting systems on all functions and they 

are reviewed by the Senior Management and the Board.

  The Company would constantly endeavor to improve on these aspects.

  Your Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance as laid down under 

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

 GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

  Governance structure of the Company comprises of the Board of Directors and the Committees of 

the Board at the apex level and the Management structure at the operational level. This facilitates in 

bringing about a harmonious blend in governance as the Board sets the overall corporate objectives 

and gives direction and freedom to the Management to achieve these corporate objectives within a 

given framework, thereby bringing about an enabling environment for value creation through sustainable 

profi table growth.

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

  The Board plays a pivotal role in ensuring that the Company runs on sound and ethical business 

practices and that its resources are utilized for creating sustainable growth and societal wealth. The 

Board operates within the framework of a well defi ned responsibility matrix which enables it to 

discharge its fi duciary duties of safeguarding the interest of the Company, ensuring fairness in the 

decision making process, integrity and transparency in the Company’s dealing with its Members and 

other stakeholders.

 COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 

  With a view to have a more focused attention on various facets of business and for better accountability, 

the Board has constituted the following committees viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 

Each of these Committees has been mandated to operate within a given framework.

 MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 

  Management Structure for running the business of the Company as a whole is in place with appropriate 

delegation of powers and responsibilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

  The Board of Directors (the Board), consisting persons with considerable professional expertise and 

experience, provides leadership and guidance to the management, thereby enhancing stakeholders’ 

value.

 COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

  As at 31st March, 2015, the board consists of eight (8) directors, all the directors except Executive 

Vice Chairman and Managing Director are non-executive directors. 

  In terms of clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Company is required to have fi fty per cent of 

its directors as independent directors. Out of the six non-executive directors, four directors are 

Non-Executive Independent Directors viz., M/s M S Viraraghavan, H Janardana Iyer, Rasesh R Doshi 

and A Arumugam.

  The Company has already a Woman Director, which satisfi es the requirement laid under Section 

149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 II (A) of the Listing Agreement. 

  Thus the composition of the Company’s Board is in conformity with the Act and listing agreement.

 DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

  The Board of Directors comprises highly renowned professionals drawn from diverse fi elds. They 

bring with them a wide range of skills and experience to the Board, which enhances the quality of 

the Board’s decision making process.

 BOARD TRAINING AND INDUCTION

  A formal Letter of Appointment is issued to Independent Directors setting out in detail, the terms of 

appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected commitments. Each newly appointed Independent 

Director is taken through a formal induction program including  presentation from the Managing 

Director on certain important aspects of the Company. The Company Secretary briefs the Director 

about their legal and regulatory responsibilities as a Director. The Managing Director also has a 

one-to-one discussion with the newly appointed Director. The above initiatives help the Director to 

understand the Company, its business and the regulatory framework in which the Company operates 

and equips him to effectively fulfi ll his role as a Director of the Company.

 BOARD MEETINGS

  The Company, in consultation with the directors, prepares and circulates a tentative annual calendar 

for the meetings of the committees / board in order to facilitate and assist the directors in planning 

their schedules well in advance to participate in the meetings.

  The Company regularly places, before the Board for its review, the information as required under 

clause 49 of the Listing Agreement such as annual operating plans, capital expenditure budget and its 

quarterly updates, quarterly results, minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other committees of 

the board, quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures, risk management and mitigation measures, 

report on compliance of all laws applicable to the Company is prepared by the Company as well as 

steps taken  by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any etc.,

  Comprehensively drafted notes for each agenda item along with background materials, wherever 

necessary, are circulated well in advance to the Committee / Board, to facilitate the directors in 

making value addition as well as exercising their business judgment in the committee/ board meetings.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTD.)
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  During the year 2014-15, the Board met 10 times on 23.4.2014, 24.5.2014, 8.6.2014, 3.7.2014, 9.8.2014, 

11.9.2014, 8.11.2014, 3.12.2014, 6.2.2015 and 30.3.2015 and the gap between two meetings did not 

exceed 120 days.

 ATTENDANCE AND OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS

  Details of director’s attendance at the board meetings during the year and at the last Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) held on 11th September, 2014 and also the number of other Directorships and 

committee memberships / chairmanships as on 31st March 2015 is as follows :

Name of the Director Cate-

gory

Attendance 

Particulars

Directorships in 

other  Companies

Committees in which 

Chairman / Member 

of other Companies

Board 

Meetings

AGM Chairman Director Chairman Director

Mr. S Narayanan NE 3 No N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A

Mr. R Naresh EVC 9 Yes 3 3 - -

Ms Shobhana 

Ramachandhran

MD 9 Yes - 12 - 3

Mr. M S Viraraghavan NE-I 10 Yes - - - -

Mr. N H Atthreya

(resigned from the Board 

w.e.f. 8.6.2014)

NE-I  - No N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A

Mr. Sitaram Rao Valluri

(resigned from the Board 

w.e.f. 7.7.2014)

NE-I 1 No N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A

Mr. P Vijayaraghavan NE 10 Yes - 1 - -

Mr. H Janardana Iyer NE-I 9 Yes - - - -

Mr. V Ramakrishnan

(appointed as Director 

w.e.f. 24.5.2014)

NE 6 Yes - - - -

Mr. Rasesh R Doshi

(appointed as Director 

w.e.f. 24.5.2014)

NE-I 6 Yes - 3 - -

Mr. A Arumugam

(appointed as Director 

w.e.f. 3.12.2014)

NE-I 2 N.A. - 3 - -

 EVC – Executive Vice Chairman

 MD – Managing Director

 NE – Non Executive

 NE-I – Non Executive – Independent 
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  None of the director is a director in more than ten Public Limited Company(s) or serve as an 

Independent Director in more than seven listed Companies.  Further, none of the directors on the 

board is a member of more than ten committees or Chairman of more than five committees 

across all companies in which they are Directors. Membership of Committees include only 

Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committee as covered under clause 49 of the Listing 

Agreement, as per the disclosures made by the Directors.  

  A formal letter of appointment is given to the director at the time of appointment, which explains 

the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of him as a director. 

  The Company has a familiarization programme for Independent Directors with regard to their roles, 

rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the 

business models of the Company etc. and the same is available on the website of the Company.

 ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND UPDATION TO BOARD

  The Board reviews all information provided periodically for discussion and consideration at its meetings 

in terms of clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. These are submitted either as a part of the agenda 

papers well in advance of the Board Meetings or are tabled in the course of the Board Meetings. 

  The Board also reviews the declarations made by the Managing Director and Secretary of the Company 

regarding compliance of all applicable laws on quarterly basis. 

 CODE OF CONDUCT 

  The Company has in place the Code of Conduct for Business and Ethics for members of the Board 

and Senior Management Personnel approved by the Board. The Code has been communicated to 

Directors and the Senior Management Personnel. The Code has also been displayed in the Company’s 

website www.tvstyres.com.  All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have confi rmed 

compliance with the Code for the year ended 31st March, 2015. The annual report contains a 

declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director, as compliance offi cer of the Code. 

 APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
  In terms of Clause 49(VIII)(E) of the Listing Agreement, a brief resume of directors, proposed to be 

appointed / re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specifi c functional areas, their other directorships 

and committee memberships, their shareholdings and relationship with other directors are provided 

in the notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company.

 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

  Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, 

the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, its Directors 

individually as well as the working of Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

 SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

  The Independent Directors met on 29th March, 2015, inter alia, to discuss the evaluation of the

 •  performance of Non-Independent Directors (including Chairman of the Company) and the Board 

of Directors as a whole;

  •  quality, content and timelines of fl ow of information between the management and the Board 

which is necessary for the Board to perform its duties effectively and reasonably.

  All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.
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 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
  For better governance and accountability, the Board has constituted the following mandatory 

committees viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The board determines and 

reviews the terms of reference of these Committees from time to time. Each of these Committee 

meetings are convened by the respective Committee Chairman who also informs the Board about 

the discussions held in the Committee meetings. The minutes of the Committee meetings are sent 

to respective directors individually and tabled at the board meeting.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
  Terms of reference of Audit Committee covers the matters specifi ed for Audit Committees under 

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and section 177(4) of the Companies Act, 2013. The role of the 

Audit Committee is as prescribed under clause 49 (III) (D) of the Listing Agreement. 

  The Committee acts as a link between the statutory and internal auditors and the Board of Directors. Its 

purpose is to assist the Board in fulfi lling its oversight responsibilities of monitoring fi nancial reporting 

processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for internal fi nancial controls, 

governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory and internal audit activities. The Committee is 

governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the Companies 

Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Some of the important functions performed by the 

Committee are:

 FINANCIAL REPORTING AND RELATED PROCESSES
  The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision 

of the management’s financial reporting process with a view to ensure accurate, timely and 

proper disclosures and transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting and oversight 

of fi nancial information submitted to  the stock exchanges, regulatory authorities or the public.

  Reviewing with the Management the quarterly unaudited fi nancial statements and the  Auditors’ 

Limited Review Report thereon/audited annual fi nancial statements and Auditors’ Report thereon 

before submission to the Board for approval. This would, inter alia, include reviewing changes in 

the accounting policies and reasons for the same, major accounting estimates based on exercise 

of judgement by the Management, signifi cant adjustments made in the fi nancial statements and / or 

recommendation, if any, made by the Statutory Auditors in this regard.

  Reviewing fi nancial and operational performance of Management Discussion & Analysis and investments 

made by the Company.

  Discussing with the statutory auditors its judgement about the quality and appropriateness of the 

Company’s accounting principles with reference to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in 

India (IGAAP).

 INTERNAL CONTROLS AND GOVERNANCE PROCESSES
  Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system,  internal controls and discuss 

with the management, Company’s major fi nancial risk exposures and steps taken by the management 

to monitor and control such exposure.

  Oversee and review the functioning of a vigil mechanism (implemented in the Company as a Fraud 

Risk Management Policy) and to review the fi ndings of investigation into cases of material nature and 

the actions taken in respect thereof.
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 AUDIT

  Reviewing the scope of statutory auditors, annual audit plan and Internal Audit Plan with a view to 

ensure adequate coverage. 

  Reviewing signifi cant audit fi ndings from statutory and internal audit carried out, the recommendations 

and management’s response thereto.

  Reviewing and recommending to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors 

and Cost Auditors considering their independence and effectiveness and their replacement and 

removal.

  Approve such additional services to be rendered by the Statutory Auditors except those enumerated 

in Section 144 of the Companies Act, 2013 and payment for such services.

  To recommend to the Board the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors/Cost Auditors.

  To discuss with the Statutory Auditors/Chief Internal Auditors any signifi cant diffi culties encountered 

during the course of the Audit.

  Review annual Cost Audit Report submitted by the Cost Auditor.

 OTHER DUTIES

  To approve the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor and 

to approve the appointment of the Chief Financial Offi cer.

  To grant omnibus approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of business 

and on an arms length pricing basis and to review and approve such transactions subject to the 

approval of the Board.

 COMPOSITION, NAMES OF MEMBERS AND CHAIRPERSON

  The Audit Committee consists of M/s M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan, H Janardana Iyer and Rasesh 

R Doshi, all non-executive directors of the Company with Sri. M S Viraraghavan as its Chairman.

  The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

  Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last AGM held on 11th September, 2014. 

  The Composition of the Committee is in accordance with section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

  PARTICULARS OF THE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT 
COMMITTEE ARE GIVEN BELOW :

Date of the  

meeting

Members present 

(M/s)

24.5.2014 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan and H Janardana Iyer

9.8.2014 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan and H Janardana Iyer

7.11.2014 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan,  H Janardana Iyer and Rasesh R Doshi

6.2.2015 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan and H Janardana Iyer

30.3.2015 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan, H Janardana Iyer and Rasesh R Doshi

  Senior Management also attend the meetings as and when required.
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4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

  Pursuant to the provisions of section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 

Agreement, NRC was constituted during the fi nancial year.

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of M/s M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan 

and H Janardana Iyer all non-executive Directors of the Company with Sri M S Viraraghavan as its 

Chairman.  

  The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the following:

  •  Succession planning of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees;

 •  Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors / Independent Directors 

based on certain defi ned criteria;

 •  Identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial Personnel and to other Senior 

Management positions;

 •  Formulate and review from time to time the policy for selection and appointment of Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and senior management employees and their remuneration;

  •  Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees based on 

certain criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the overall remuneration of the Board of 

Directors and Senior Management, the Committee ensures that the remuneration is reasonable 

and suffi cient to attract, retain and motivate the best managerial talent, the relationship of 

remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and that 

the remuneration involves a balance between fi xed and incentive pay refl ecting short term and 

long term objectives of the Company.

 THE PARTICULARS OF MEETINGS AND THE ATTENDANCE BY THE MEMBERS OF THE 
NRC ARE GIVEN BELOW :

Date of the  

meeting

Members present 

(M/s)

24.5.2014 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan and H Janardana Iyer

3.7.2014 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan and H Janardana Iyer

3.12.2014 M S Viraraghavan and P Vijayaraghavan 

6.2.2015 M S Viraraghavan, P Vijayaraghavan and H Janardana Iyer

 REMUNERATION POLICY

  The Company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors and Senior Management Employees 

and uploaded in the Company’s website at the web link http://www.tvstyres.com/policy/

REMUNERATION%20POLICY.pdf

 REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

  The non-executive directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, 

reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board / Committee meetings and commission as 

detailed hereunder:

  A non-executive director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board 

or Committee of the Board attended by him of such sum as may be approved by the Board of 
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Directors within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014; 

  A non-executive director will also be entitled to receive commission on an annual basis of such 

sum as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee; 

  The total commission payable to the directors shall not exceed 1% of the net profi t of the 

Company;

  The Commission shall be payable on prorata basis to those Directors who occupy offi ce for part 

of the year. 

 REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR 

  At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Managing Director shall be paid such 

remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the Nomination 

& Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Managing Director within the 

overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act.

  The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General 

Meeting. 

  The remuneration of the Managing Director is broadly divided into fi xed and variable component. 

The fi xed compensation shall comprise salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retirement 

benefi ts. The variable component shall comprise of performance bonus. 

  In determining the remuneration (including the fi xed increment and performance bonus) the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall consider the following:

  a.  the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmarks is clear;

  b.  balance between fi xed and incentive pay refl ecting short and long-term performance objectives 

appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

  c.  responsibility required to be shouldered by the Managing Director & CEO and the industry 

benchmarks and the current trends;

 • the Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual budget achievement and individual performance 

vis-à-vis the KRAs / KPIs.

  Sitting fee of Rs.5,000/- each is paid to the non-executive directors for every meeting of the 

board  and / or committee thereof attended by them, which is within the limits, prescribed under 

the Act.

  The details of remuneration paid and the number of shares held by the Non-Executive Directors are 

as follows:

(a) Name (b) Sitting Fees paid [Rs. in lakhs] (c) Commission paid [Rs. in lakhs]   (d) Total [Rs.in lakhs] 

(e) No. of shares

(a) Mr S Narayanan (b) 0.15 (c) 7.05 (d) 7.20 (e) 2195 (a) Mr M S Viraraghavan (b) 1.00 (c) 15.00 

(d) 16.00 (e) 900, (a) Mr N H Atthreya (b) Nil (c) 4.10 (d) 4.10 (e)1200, (a) Mr Sitaram Rao Valluri 

(b) 0.05 (c) 2.64 (d) 2.69 (e) Nil, (a) Mr P Vijayaraghavan (b)  1.40 (c)  15.00 (d) 16.40 (e) 150, 

(a) Mr H Janardana Iyer (b) 0.90 (c) 15.00 (d) 15.90 (e) Nil  (a) Mr V Ramakrishnan  (b) 0.35 (c) 
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8.42 (d) 8.77 (e) Nil (a) Mr Rasesh R Doshi (b) 0.45 (c) 15.00 (d) 15.45 (e) Nil (a) Mr A Arumugam 

(b) 0.15 (c) 3.21 (d) 3.36 (e) Nil

Particulars of remuneration paid to Executive Vice Chairman and Managing Director during the 

fi nancial year 2014-2015 :

(a) Name (b) Designation (c) Salaries & Allowances (d) Commission (e) Perquisites (f) Total [Rs. in 

lakhs]

(a) Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran (b) Managing Director (c) 98.51 (d) 296.00  (e) Nil (f) 394.51; (a) 

Mr R Naresh (b) Executive Vice Chairman (c) 60.80  (d) 413.00 (e)   Nil (f) 473.80

  Presently, the Company does not have a scheme for grant of any stock option either to the Executive 

Directors or its employees.

 REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

 i.  In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management employees (i.e. KMPs and Executive 

Committee Members) the Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall consider the following:

  a)  the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear;

  b)  balance between fi xed and incentive pay refl ecting short and long-term performance objectives 

appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals;

  c)  the remuneration is divided into two components viz. fi xed component of salaries, perquisites 

and retirement benefi ts and variable component of performance based incentive;

  d)  the remuneration including annual increment and performance incentive is decided based on 

the criticality of the roles and responsibilities, the Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual 

budget achievement, individuals performance vis-à-vis KRAs / KPIs, industry benchmark and 

current compensation trends in the market;

 ii.  the Managing Director  will carry out the individual performance review based on the standard 

appraisal matrix and after taking into account the appraisal score card and other factors mentioned 

hereinabove, recommends the annual increment and performance incentive to the Nomination 

& Remuneration Committee for its review and approval.

5.  STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

  During the year, the nomenclature of Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee was renamed as 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in line with the provisions of the Act.  The Committee consists of 

Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhran, Mr. P Vijayaraghavan and Mr. V Ramakrishnan as its members. 

Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhran, is the Chairman of the Committee.  The Committee met two times 

during the year. 

  Company Secretary is the Compliance Offi cer of the Committee.

  The Committee oversees and reviews all matters connected with share transfers, duplicate share 

certifi cate, and other issues pertaining to shares. The committee also looks into the redressal of 

investors grievances pertaining to transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of 

dividends etc.,  The Company, as a matter of policy, disposes investor complaints within a span of 

three days.

  There were no complaints received during the year 2014-15.
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  All the queries and complaints received during the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2015 were duly 

redressed and no queries were pending for resolution on this date. 

  All requests for dematerialization of shares were carried out within the stipulated period and no 

share certifi cate was pending for dematerialization. 

 RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT
  A qualifi ed practising Company Secretary carries out a Reconciliation of Share Capital (ROSC) Audit 

on a quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) with the total issued and listed capital, 

and the report are placed for the perusal of the Board.  

  ROSC Audit Report confi rms that the total issued and the listed capital is in agreement with the total 

number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized form held with 

NSDL and CDSL. 

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR)
  The Company has constituted a CSR Committee as required under Section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

  The Committee consists of Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhran, Mr. P Vijayaraghavan and Mr. Rasesh R 

Doshi as its members.  During the year, the Committee had two meetings.

  The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:-

 a)  to frame the CSR Policy and its review from time-to-time. 

 b)  to ensure effective implementation and monitoring of the CSR activities as per the approved 

policy, plans and budget. 

 c)  to ensure compliance with the laws, rules & regulations governing the CSR and to periodically 

report to the Board of Directors.

7.  WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
  Various risk associated with the business have increased with the rapid expansion of business in terms 

of volume, value and geography. Risk of fraud misconduct is one such risk. The Audit Committee is 

committed to ensure fraud-free work environment for which the Committee has laid down a Whistle 

Blower Policy providing a platform to all the director, employee, vendors and customers to report 

any suspected or confi rmed incident of fraud/misconduct.  The policy is posted on Company’s website 

(www.tvstyres.com).

  During the year, no instance was reported under this policy.

8. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
  The Company does not have any material subsidiary whose net worth exceeds 20% of the consolidated 

net worth of the holding company in the immediately preceding accounting year or has generated 

20% of the consolidated income of the Company during the previous fi nancial year. Accordingly, a 

policy on material subsidiary(s) has not been formulated.

  The Audit Committee of Directors reviews the fi nancial statements.

  The minutes of the Board Meetings of unlisted subsidiary company is periodically placed before the 

Board. The Board is periodically informed about all signifi cant transactions and arrangements entered 

into by the unlisted subsidiary.
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9. GENERAL BODY MEETING

  Location and time where the annual general meetings were held during the last three years:

Year Location Date & Time

2011-12 
Lakshmi Sundaram Hall

15-A Gokhale Road, Madurai 625 002

27.9.2012

10.30 AM

2012-13
Lakshmi Sundaram Hall

15-A Gokhale Road, Madurai 625 002

25.9.2013

10.30 AM

2013-14
Lakshmi Sundaram Hall

15-A Gokhale Road, Madurai 625 002

11.9.2014

10.30 AM

  One special resolution was put through in the year 2013-14.

  The Company successfully completed the process of obtaining approval of its Members on the 

following resolution through Postal Ballots during the year 2014:

  The Company has obtained approval under section 180(1)(c) and 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 

2013 through Postal Ballot.

Particulars
Total No. of 

valid votes

Votes 

assenting the 

resolution

% of 

votes 

cast

Votes 

dissenting the 

resolution

% of 

votes 

cast

Borrowing Powers – 

Section 180(1)(c)
3678872 3676757 99.94 2115 0.06

Section 180(1)(a) 3673583 3671440 99.94 2143 0.06

 Mr. N Balachandran, Practising Company Secretary  conducted the Postal Ballot exercise

10. DISCLOSURES

 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

  All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defi ned under the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement during the fi nancial year were in the ordinary course of business 

and on an arms length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. There are no materially signifi cant transactions with related parties during the fi nancial 

year which are in confl ict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required by the 

Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

  The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which is available on the Company’s 

website

 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 
  The Company follows the Accounting Standard 18 (AS18) issued by The Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India and Company (Accounting Standards) Rule, 2006 

 RISK MANAGEMENT

  The Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board about the risk assessment and 

minimization procedures, to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a 

properly defi ned framework. 
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 INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE(S), IF ANY
  There were no instances of non-compliances by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on 

the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authorities on any matter related 

to the capital markets during the year.

 DISCLOSURE BY SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
  The senior management personnel have made disclosures to the Board relating to all material, 

fi nancial and other transactions stating that they did not have any personal interest that could result 

in a confl ict with the interest of the company at large.

 CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
  The Managing Director (CEO) and the Vice President – Finance (CFO) of the Company have certifi ed 

to the Board on fi nancial and other matters in accordance with Clause 49 (IX) of the Listing Agreement   

pertaining to CEO/CFO certifi cation for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2015.

 COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY / NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
  The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements in terms of Clause 49 of the 

Listing Agreement. The non-mandatory requirements have been adopted to the extent and in the 

manner as stated under the appropriate headings detailed elsewhere in this report. 

 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
  The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly fi nancial results of the Company are sent to the Stock Exchanges 

immediately after these are approved by the Board. These are published in  Business  Line and Dinamalar 

and Dalal Street Investment Journal . These results are simultaneously posted on the website of the 

Company at www.tvstyres.com and also uploaded on the website of National Stock Exchange of India 

Ltd. and the Bombay Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

 GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting, Date, Time and Venue Lakshmi Sundaram Hall

15-A Gokhale Road, Madurai 625 002

Financial Year 1st April to 31st March

Financial Calendar 2015-16 (tentative) 

Financial reporting for the quarter ending Financial calendar

30th June 2015 Before 14th August, 2015

30th September, 2015 Before 14th November, 2015

31st December, 2015 Before 14th February, 2016

31st March, 2016 Before 30th May, 2016

Date of Book closure 12.9.2015 to 23.9.2015

(Both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date Dividend will be paid on 5.10.2015

Listing on Stock Exchanges 

Name of the Stock Exchange Stock code / Symbol

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd 509243

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd TVSSRICHAK

ISIN allotted by Depositories (Company ID Number) INE421C01016

  Note : annual listing fees and custodial charges for the year 2015-16 were duly paid to the above 

Stock Exchanges and to the Depositories.
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 SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

  Shares lodged for transfers are normally processed within seven days from the date of lodgement, if 

the documents are valid in all respects. All requests for dematerialization of securities are processed 

and the confi rmation is given to the Depositories within three days. Grievances received from 

shareholders and other miscellaneous correspondence on change of address, mandates, etc are 

processed by the Share Transfer Agent of the Company within three days.

  Certifi cates are being obtained and submitted to Stock Exchanges, on half-yearly basis, from a Company 

Secretary-in-practice towards due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company within 

the due dates, in terms of Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges.

  Certifi cates have also been received from a Company Secretary-in-practice  and submitted to the 

Stock Exchanges, on a quarterly basis, for timely dematerialization of shares of the Company and 

for reconciliation of the share capital  of the Company, as required under SEBI (Depositories and 

participants) Regulations, 1996.

  The Company as required under clause 47(f) of the Listing Agreement, has designated the following 

e-mail IDs, namely Secinvestorgrievances@tvstyres.com,  Secretarial@tvstyres.com for the purpose 

of registering complaints, if any, by the investors and expeditious redressal of their grievances.

  Shareholders are, therefore, requested to correspond with the Share Transfer Agent for transfer / 

transmission of shares, change of address and queries pertaining their shareholdings, dividends, etc., 

at the address given in this report. 

 DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2015

No. of equity 

shares held

No. of 

shareholders

% of 

shareholders

No. of 

shares held

% of 

shareholding 

1 to 500 19610 95.96 1832321 23.93

501 to 1000 501 2.45 365375 4.77

1001 to 2000 171 0.84 251583 3.29

2001 to 3000 51 0.25 132958 1.74

3001 to 4000 28 0.14 95864 1.25

4001 to 5000 20 0.10 92505 1.21

5001 – 10000 18 0.09 125224 1.64

10001 & above 37 0.18 4761220 62.18

Total 20436 100.00 7657050 100.00
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 Share Price Data

Month
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE) National Stock Exchange Ltd (NSE)

High Low High Low

April 14 339.90 304.95 339.10 302.80

May 14 520.10 324.80 508.65 325.55

June 14 634.40 510.05 635.55 572.95

July 14 692.40 585.05 687.55 585.00

Aug. 14 847.65 652.75 849.15 651.95

Sept.14 1110.65 876.35 1115.50 875.60

Oct.14 1178.40 995.20 1122.65 993.75

Nov.14 1731.90 1200.75 1734.85 1200.25

Dec.14 1806.65 1566.95 1804.65 1565.95

Jan. 15 1719.35 1600.55 1715.95 1602.80

Feb.15 1809.05 1564.50 1805.75 1570.75

Mar.15 1566.75 1444.25 1565.30 1441.20

 Share price performance in comparison to broad based indices – BSE Sensex:
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 DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY
  Out of 4108489 shares held by persons other than promoters, 3170696 shares have been dematerialized 

as on 31st March, 2015 accounting to 77.17%.

  The Company has already achieved 100% of promoter group’s shareholding in dematerialized form 

consisting of 3548561 equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- each

  Details of public funding obtained in the last three years - No capital has been raised in the last three 

years

  The Company has not issued any Global Depository Receipt / American Depository Receipt / Warrant 

or any convertible instrument, which is likely to have impact on the Company’s equity

 REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT OF THE COMPANY

  M/s Integrated Enterprises (India) Limited, Chennai, are acting as common agency for all investor 

servicing activities relating to both electronic and physical segments. Their address is :

  M/s Integrated Enterprises (India) Limited
“Kences Towers” II Floor,  No.1, Ramakrishna Street, 
North Usman Road, T Nagar, Chennai 600017

  Phone  044 – 28140801 – 803
Fax      044 – 28142479 

 Email    corpserv@integratedindia.in

 PLANT LOCATIONS 

 TAMIL NADU
 1.  Vellaripatti Village, Melur Taluk, Madurai  District, Pin 625 122

 2.  Narasingampatti Village, Therkutheru, MelurTaluk, Madurai  District, Pin 625 122

 UTTARAKHAND

  Plot No.7, Sector – 1, Integrated Industrial Estate, SIDCUL, Pantnagar 263153, Rudrapur, 

Tehsil – Kichha, District Udham Singh Nagar,  Uttarkhand

 ADDRESS FOR COMMUNICATION 

  TVS Srichakra Limited, No.10, Jawahar Road, Madurai 625 002

Phone : 0452  2420461 

Fax  : 0452 2420266

Email : Secinvestorgrievances@tvstyres.com;

   Secretarial@tvstyres.com

website : www.tvstyres.com

 COMPLIANCE OFFICER

  Mr. P Srinivasan, Secretary

TVS Srichakra Limited, 10 Jawahar Road, Madurai 625 002

Phone : 0452 – 2420461 to  2420468

Fax : 0452 – 2420266

Email id – Srinivasan.P@tvstyres.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)
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NON MANDATORY  DISCLOSURES

The non-mandatory requirements have been adopted to the extent and in the manner as stated under 

the appropriate headings detailed below :

THE BOARD

The non-executive Directors of the Company are liable to retire by rotation and if eligible, offer themselves 

for re-appointment.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

The quarterly / half-yearly / annual results of the Company are published in English and Vernacular 

newspapers and are also displayed on the Company’s website namely www.tvstyres.com  and in the 

offi cial website of the stock exchanges, where the shares of the Company are listed / traded, as soon as 

the results are approved by the board.  The results are not sent to the shareholders individually. 

AUDIT QUALIFICATION 

The statutory fi nancial statements of the Company are unqualifi ed. 

REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders are requested to follow the general safeguard procedures as detailed hereunder in order 

to serve them effi ciently and avoid risks while dealing in securities of the Company.

DEMAT OF SHARES

Shareholders are requested to convert their physical holding to demat / electronic form through any 

of the Depository Participants (DPs) to avoid any possibility of loss, mutilation, etc., of physical share 

certifi cates and also to ensure safe and speedy transaction in securities. 

REGISTRATION OF ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE (ECS) MANDATE

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank 

account details furnished by the Depositories for payment of dividend through ECS to investors wherever 

ECS and bank details are available.  The Company will not entertain any direct request from members 

holding shares in electronic mode for deletion of / change in such bank details.  Members, who wish to 

change such bank account details, are therefore requested to advise their DPs about such change, with 

complete details of bank account.

ECS helps in quick remittance of dividend without possible loss / delay in postal transit.  Shareholders, who 

have not earlier availed this facility, are requested to register their ECS details with the Share Transfer 

Agent of the Company or their respective DPs

TRANSFER OF SHARES IN PHYSICAL MODE

Shareholders should fi ll in complete and correct particulars in the transfer deed, for expeditious transfer 

of shares.  Wherever applicable, registration number  of power of attorney should also be quoted in the 

transfer deed at the appropriate place.

Shareholders, whose signatures have undergone any change over a period of time, are requested to 

lodge their new specimen signature duly attested by a bank manager to the share transfer department.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)



56 56

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)

In terms of SEBI’s circular no. MRD/DoP/Cir-05/1009 dated 20th May, 2009, it has become mandatory 

for transferees to furnish a copy of Permanent Account Number (PAN) for registration of transfer of 

shares to be held in physical mode.

CONSOLIDATION OF MULTIPLE FOLIOS 
Shareholders, who have multiple folios in identical names, are requested to apply for consolidation of such 

folios and send the relevant share certifi cates to the Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

UPDATION OF ADDRESS
Shareholders are requested to update their address registered with the Company, directly through the 

share transfer agent, to receive all communications promptly.

Shareholders holding shares in electronic form are requested to deal only with their DPs in respect of 

change of address and furnishing bank account number etc.,

SMS ALERTS
Investors are requested to note that National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)  have announced the launch of SMS alert facility for demat 

account holders whereby shareholders will receive alerts for debits / credits (transfers) to their demat 

accounts a day after the respective transfers.  These alerts will be sent to those account holders who 

have provided their mobile numbers to their Depository Participants (DPs) and made a request for such 

service.  No charge will be levied by NSDL /CDSL on DPs for providing this facility to investors.  Further 

information is available on the website of NSDL and CDSL, namely www.nsdl.co.in  and www.cdslindia.

com respectively.

TIMELY ENCASHMENT OF DIVIDENDS
Shareholders are requested to encash their dividends promptly to avoid hassles  of revalidation / losing 

your right to claim owing to transfer of unclaimed dividends beyond seven years to Investors Education 

and Protection Fund (IEPF).

As required by SEBI, shareholders are requested to furnish details of their bank account number and name 

and address of the bank for incorporating the same in the warrants.  This would avoid wrong credits 

being obtained by unauthorized persons.

Shareholders who have not encashed their dividend warrants in respect of dividend declared for the 

fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2008 and for any fi nancial year thereafter may contact the Company and 

surrender their warrants for payment.

Information in respect of the unclaimed dividend of the Company with due date for remittance to IEPF 

is given below:

Financial 

Year
Date of declaration

Date of transfer 

to special account

Date of transfer 

to IEPF

31.3.2008 18.9.2008 24.10.2008 21.11.2015

31.3.2009 25.9.2009 31.10.2009 28.11.2016

31.3.2010 20.9.2010 19.3.2010 16.4.2017

31.3.2011 3.8.2011 8.9.2011 6.10.2018

31.3.2012 27.9.2012 2.11.2012 1.12.2019

31.3.2013 25.9.2013 31.10.2013 30.11.2020

31.3.2014 11.9.2014 17.10.2014 15.11.2021
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UNCLAIMED SHARE CERTIFICATES

In terms of the provisions of Clause 5A of the Listing Agreement, (introduced vide SEBI circular 

dated 16th December, 2010)  the unclaimed share certifi cates were dematerialized and transferred 

to “Unclaimed  Suspense Account” with M/s Geojit BNP Paribas Financial Services Limited, Kochi.  

As required under this clause of the Listing Agreement, the Company sent reminder letters to the 

shareholders, whose share certifi cates were returned undelivered or unclaimed.  Action has been 

taken thereafter to transfer the unclaimed shares to “Unclaimed Suspense Account” to comply with 

the requirement of this clause of the Listing Agreement. As and when the shareholder approaches the 

Company with required documents, the Company shall credit the shares lying in the suspense account 

to the demat account of the shareholder.

PERMANENT ACCOUNT NUMBER (PAN)

Members who hold shares in physical form are advised that SEBI has made it mandatory that a copy 

of the PAN card of the transferee(s), members, surviving joint holders / legal heirs be furnished to the 

Company while obtaining the services of transfer, transposition, transmission and issue of duplicate 

share certifi cates.
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To the Members of

TVS Srichakra Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by TVS Srichakra Limited, 

for the year ended on 31.3.2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company 

with Stock Exchange(s).

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.  Our 

examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance.  It is neither an audit nor an expression 

of opinion on the fi nancial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned 

Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company, 

as per the records maintained by the Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor the effi ciency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

          For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

          Chartered Accountants

   Firm Registration No. 004207S

Madurai K S NARAYANASWAMY

23.5.2015 Partner

Membership No. 8593

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION 

The Board of Directors

TVS Srichakra Limited

We certify that – 

a)  We have reviewed fi nancial statements and the cash fl ow statement for the year ended  31st March, 

2015 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief

 i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading;

 ii)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for fi nancial reporting and 

that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining 

to fi nancial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, defi ciencies 

in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we 

have taken or propose to take to rectify these defi ciencies.

d)  We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that there were 

 i) no signifi cant changes in internal control over fi nancial reporting during the year;

 ii)  no signifi cant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed 

in the notes to the fi nancial statements; and

 iii)  no instances of signifi cant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 

if any, of  the management or an employee having a signifi cant role in the Company’s internal 

control system over fi nancial reporting. 

G V MAHADEVAN SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN 

VICE PRESIDENT – FINANCE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Madurai

23.5.2015

CERTIFICATE

The Shareholders

TVS Srichakra Limited

I, Shobhana Ramachandhran, Managing Director of the Company, hereby confi rm that all the Members 

of your Board and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company, have confi rmed the compliance 

to the  Code of Conduct of the Company, during the year ended 31st March, 2015.

Madurai    SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN

23.5.2015 M ANAGING DIRECTOR
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To 

The Members of TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED, 

7B, West Veli Street,

Madurai - 625001

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
We have audited the accompanying standalone fi nancial statements of TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED, 

MADURAI – 625001(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the 

Statement of Profi t and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the 

signifi cant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone fi nancial statements that give 

a true and fair view of the fi nancial position, fi nancial performance and cash fl ows of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 

of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair 

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone fi nancial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specifi ed under section 143(10) 

of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures 

in the fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone fi nancial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal fi nancial control relevant 

to the Company’s preparation of the standalone fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal fi nancial controls system 

over fi nancial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating 

the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 

made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fi nancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the fi nancial statements. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TVS SRICHAKRA 
LIMITED, MADURAI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015
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OPINION 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone fi nancial statements read together with the annexure to our report give the 

information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015;

ii.  in the case of the Statement of Profi t and Loss, of the profi t for the year ended on that date; and

iii.  in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profi t and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid fi nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specifi ed 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2015 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on 31st March, 

2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us:

 i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its fi nancial position in its 

fi nancial statements – Refer Notes on accounts (Note 27 (o))to the fi nancial statements; 

 ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses.

 iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and protection Fund by the Company.

For Sundaram & Srinivasan,

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. 004207S

K S Narayanaswamy

Madurai Partner

23.5.2015 Membership N o. : 8593
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i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of fi xed assets.

 (b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verifi cation of its fi xed assets by which fi xed 

assets are verifi ed in a phased manner at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verifi cation. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verifi cation is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

ii) (a) Physical verifi cation of stock of fi nished goods, stores, spare parts and raw materials has been 

conducted by the Management at reasonable intervals.

 (b) The procedures of physical verifi cation of inventories followed by the Management are reasonable 

and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

 (c)  The Company has maintained proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on 

verifi cation between the physical stock and the book records were not material and the same 

have been properly dealt with in the accounts.

iii) (a) The Company has not granted any loan during the year.

 (b) A sum of Rs.34.59 crores has been granted to a wholly owned subsidiary Company as advance 

in an earlier year, which is interest free. This along with an advance of Rs.0.01 crore made 

during the year is outstanding at the year end. (Maximum outstanding during the year : Rs.34.60 

Crores). No amounts have been received back during the year.

iv) The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company 

and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventory and fi xed assets and for sale of 

goods and there are no major weaknesses in such internal control system.

v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the 

Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and 

records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of 

the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 

Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 

dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 

undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, 

Excise Duty and Cess were in arrears, as at 31.03.2015 for a period of more than six months 

from the date they became payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues of Income Tax, Sales 

Tax, Excise Duty & Service Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are 

furnished below:

ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF TVS 
SRICHAKRA LIMITED, MADURAI
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Rs. in Crores

Forum Where Dispute is Pending Income-Tax Sales Tax Excise Duty & 

Service Tax

High Court - - 0.10 

Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal - - 1.58 

Commissioner - - 1.71 

Commissioner (Appeals) 3.53 - 0.02 

Joint Commissioner - 0.01 0.20 

Joint Commissioner (Appeals) - 0.29 - 

Deputy Commissioner - 0.08 0.79 

Deputy Commissioner (Appeals) - 3.34 - 

Assistant Commissioner - 5.78 - 

Appellate Tribunal 0.11 - - 

Income Tax Offi ce CPC (TDS) 1.73 - - 

Commercial Tax Offi cer - 0.02 - 

 (c ) There are no amounts due and outstanding which are required to be transferred to Investor 

Education and Protection Fund. 

viii) The Company does not have any accumulated losses and no loss cash or otherwise has been incurred 

by the Company in the current fi nancial year or preceding fi nancial year.

ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in repayment of dues to Bank.

x) The Company has not given any guarantee during the year.

xi) The Company has not availed any term loan during the year. In our opinion, the term loans availed 

during earlier years were applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the year.

For Sundaram & Srinivasan

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.004207 S

K.S. Narayanaswamy

Madurai Partner

23.5.2015 Membership No: 8593
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015
Rs. in Crores

         Particulars  Note No. 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 1 Shareholders’ Funds

  (a)  Share Capital   1 7.66 7.66

  (b)  Reserves and Surplus  2 268.63 195.99

  (c)  Money received against share warrants

 2 Share application money pending allotment  – –

 3 Non-current liabilities

  (a)  Long-term borrowings  3 73.83 112.86

  (b)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  4 22.64 21.86

  (c)  Other Long-term liabilities   5 14.91 9.66

  (d)  Long-term provisions  6 7.71 2.80

 4 Current liabilities

  (a)  Short-term borrowings  7 102.07 152.13

  (b)  Trade payables  8 134.55 215.70

  (c)  Other current liabilities  9 134.82 99.95

  (d)  Short-term provisions  10 33.60 19.98

    Total   800.42 838.59

II. ASSETS
 Non-current assets

 1 (a)  Fixed assets

   (i) Tangible assets  11 264.12 224.61

   (ii) Intangible assets  11 2.98 4.71

   (iii) Capital work-in-progress  11 14.17 16.18

   (iv) Intangible assets under development  11 4.23 4.27

  (b)  Non-current investments  12 32.01 19.26

  (c)  Long-term loans and advances  13 64.81 52.54

  (d) Other non-current assets  14 7.46 12.46

 2 Current assets

  (a)  Inventories  15 209.84 206.65

  (b)  Trade receivables  16 166.80 266.38

  (c)  Cash and cash equivalents  17 9.42 7.94

  (d)  Short-term loans and advances  18 24.58 23.59

      Total  800.42 838.59

 Signifi cant Accounting Policies  26

 Notes on Accounts  27

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH  As per our report attached

Managing Director  Executive Vice C hairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837  DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

      Firm Registration No. 004207 S

      K S NARAYANASWAMY

Place : Madurai G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN Partner

Date : 23.5.2015 Vice President-Finance Secretary Membership No. 8593
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015
Rs. in Crores

        Particulars  Note No. 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

I. Revenue from operations  19 1895.99 1670.99

II. Other income  20 3.72 1.39

III. Total Revenue (I + II)   1899.71 1672.38

IV. Expenses:

 Cost of materials consumed  21 1137.99 1086.01

 Purchases of Traded goods    2.83   3.50 

 Changes in inventories of fi nished goods, 

 work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade  22  (17.37)  14.73 

 Employee benefi t expenses  23  164.23   124.88 

 Finance costs  24  29.89   41.56 

 Depreciation and amortization expense  11  39.88   23.67 

 Other expenses  25  402.69   322.11 

    Total expenses  1760.14 1616.46

V. Profi t before exceptional and extraordinary 

 items and tax (III-IV)   139.57  55.92 

VI. Exceptional items    -     -   

VII. Profi t before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)  139.57  55.92 

VIII. Extraordinary Items    -     -   

IX. Profi t before tax (VII - VIII)   139.57  55.92

X. Tax expense :   

 (1) Current tax    35.00 13.68

  Less: MAT Credit Entitlement   - - 4.29

  Net of MAT Credit Entitlement   35.00 9.39

 (2) Deferred tax   0.78 - 0.92

XI. Profi t/(Loss) for the period from continuing 

 operations (IX-X)   103.79 47.45

XII. Profi t/(Loss) from discontinuing operations   - -

XIII. Tax expense of discontinuing operations   - -

XIV. Profi t/(Loss) from Discontinuing operations 

 (after tax) (XII-XIII)    -     -   

XV. Profi t/(Loss) for the period (XI + XIV)   103.79 47.45

XVI. Earnings per equity share: (in Rs.)

 Basic and Diluted   135.55 61.96

 Signifi cant Accounting Policies  26

 Notes on Accounts  27

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH  As per our report attached

Managing Director  Executive Vice C hairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837  DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

      Firm Registration No. 004207 S

      K S NARAYANASWAMY

Place : Madurai G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN Partner

Date : 23.5.2015 Vice President-Finance Secretary Membership No. 8593
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015 
PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 32 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT
 Rs. in Crores

         Particulars   31.3.2015 31.3.2014

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Profi t before tax   139.57   55.92
  Adjustments for : 
  Depreciation  39.88   23.67
  Interest paid  29.89   44.24 
  Interest received  (1.11)  (0.82)
  (Profi t)/Loss on Sale of Assets  0.01  0.03
  Provision for doubtful debts    1.58
  Provision for doubtful debts withdrawn  (1.93)
  Assets Condemned  0.33
  Non operating income  (0.68)  (0.57)
       66.39   68.13

 OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES   205.96  124.05

  Adjustments for :
  Trade Receivables  101.51  (81.53)
  Other Receivables  1.87  11.46
  Inventories  (3.19)  46.52
  Trade and other payables  (25.66)  (75.58)
       74.53  (99.13)

 Cash Generated From Operations   280.49  24.92
 Direct taxes paid   38.48  10.15

 NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)   242.01  14.77

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
 Purchase of Fixed Assets  (84.32)  (72.19)
 Proceeds from disposal of assets  0.02    0.13 
 Investments Purchased  (12.75)
 Investments sold off    0.02
 Non operating income  0.68   0.57
 Interest received  1.11  1.10
 NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)   (95.26)  (70.37)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
 Interest paid   (33.10)  (44.25)
 Proceeds/(Repayment) from short-term borrowings  (50.06)  36.84
 Proceeds/(Repayment) of long-term borrowings  (48.09)  33.71
 Loan to subsidiary  (0.01)  (1.06)
 Dividend & Dividend tax paid  (14.01)  (6.59)
 NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: (C)   (145.27)  18.65 
 NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
 EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)   1.48   (36.95)
 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - OPENING BALANCE  7.94   44.89 
 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - CLOSING BALANCE  9.42   7.94 

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN  R NARESH
Managing Director   Executive Vice Chairman
DIN : 00273837   DIN : 00273609

Place : Madurai  G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN
Date : 23.5.2015  Vice President-Finance Secretary

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE
We have examined the Cash Flow Statement of TVS Srichakra Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2015.  The 
statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of Clause 32 of the Listing Agree-
ment and is based on and is in agreement with the corresponding Statement of Profi t and Loss and Balance Sheet of 
the Company by our report dated 23.5.2015 to the members of the Company.

    
For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

  Chartered Accountants
  Firm Registration No. 004207 S

K S NARAYANASWAMY
Place : Madurai Partner
Date  : 23.5.2015 Membership No.8593
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 1 - SHARE CAPITAL
          31.3.2015   31.3.2014

       

Authorised

1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  10.00 10.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up:

76,57,050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  7.66 7.66

Subscribed & Paid up

76,57,050 Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each fully paid  7.66 7.66

Subscribed but not fully Paid up

Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each, not fully paid up  - -

     Total 7.66 7.66

          Equity Shares

      No.’000 Rs. in Crores

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year   7657.05   7.66

Shares Issued during the year   -     -

Shares bought back during the year  -     -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  7657.05   7.66

Other Information :

Equity Share holders holding more than 5% of the total Share capital 

of the Company

 T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited  27.73% 27.73%

 Sundaram Industries Private Limited  9.79% 9.79%

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares -

Equity shares - The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each share-

holder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 

to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim 

dividend. Each shareholder also has a residual interest in the assets of the Company in proportion to 

their shareholding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
          31.3.2015   31.3.2014 

a. Capital Reserves

 Opening Balance  0.01   0.01

 (+) Cur rent Year Transfer  - -

 (-) Written Back in Current Year  - -

 Closing Balance  0.01   0.01

b. Securities Premium Account

 Opening Balance  0.93 0.93

 Add  :   Securities premium credited on Share issue - -

 Less :  Premium Utilised for various reasons  - -   

   Premium on Redemption of Debentures - -

    For Issuing Bonus Shares  - -

 Closing Balance  0.93 0.93

c. Other Reserves - Surplus on Amalgamation

 Opening Balance  0.46 0.46

 (+) Cur rent Year Transfer  - -

 (-) Written Back in Current Year  - -

 Closing Balance  0.46 0.46

d. Other Reserves -  General Reserve

 Opening Balance  31.01   26.21

 (+) Cur rent Year Transfer  -  4.80

 (-) Written Back in Current Year  - -

 Closing Balance  31.01 31.01

e. Surplus

 Opening balance  163.58 135.26

 (+) Net Profi t/(Net Loss) For the current year  103.79 47.45

 (-) Proposed Dividend  25.88 12.25

 (-) Div idend Tax  5.27 2.08

 (-) Transfer to Reserves  - 4.80

 Closing Balance  236.22 163.58

     Total 268.63 195.99
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 3 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS
          31.3.2015   31.3.2014 

Secured

(a) Term loans

 from banks    73.83 109.19

 from other parties  -  3.67

     Total 73.83   112.86

Additional Information :

Details of Security for Secured Loans

a) Term Loan Availed from State Bank of India is secured by exclusive fi rst charge on the assets created 
out of the term loans including 1) Equitable Mortgage of Lease hold rights over 28424 Sq mt plot of 
land, Plot No 7, Sector I, Industrial Area, I.I.E Pant Nagar, Uttam Singh Dist, Uttarakhand and buildings 
thereon, belonging to the Company and  2) Equitable mortgage over Land (1.90 acres) and Building 
at Survey No. 519 / 1B2, located at Narasingampatti Village, Madurai.

b) Term Loan from Karur Vysya Bank Ltd., is secured by hypothecation of Specifi c Plant & Machinery 
located at Pant Nagar, Uttrakhand as well as Specifi c Plant and Machinery located at Vellaripatti Village, 
Madurai.

c) Term Loan from Sundaram Finance Ltd., is secured by hypothecation of Specifi c Plant & Machinery 
located at Pant Nagar, Rudrapur, Uttrakhand as well as Specifi c Plant and Machinery located at Vellaripatti 
Village, Madurai.

d) Term Loan from DBS Bank  is secured by hypothecation of Specifi c Plant & Machinery  located at 

Vellaripatti Village, M adurai.

          31.3.2015   31.3.2014 

NOTE 4 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/ASSETS

i) Deferred Tax L iability

 a) On account of Depreciation on Fixed Assets  24.84 25.58

 b) On account of timing Differences in Recognition of Expenditure (2.20) (3.72)

     Total 22.64 21.86

NOTE 5 - OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES  

(a) Trade Payables  – –

(b) Others    14.91 9.66 

     Total 14.91 9.66
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 6 - LONG TERM PROVISIONS

         31.3.2015   31.3.2014 

(a) Provision for employee benefi ts

 Leave Encashment (unfunded)  2.93  2.32

 Gratuity     4.78 0.48

(b) Others     - -

(c) Provision f or Taxation   - -

      Total 7.71  2.80

NOTE 7 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS   

Secured

(a) Loans repayable on demand

 from banks    102.07  101.79

 from other parties  - -

Unsecured

(a) Loans repayable on demand

 from banks    - 50.34

 from other parties   -     -   

      Total 102.07 152.13

Additional Information :

a. Details of Security for Secured Loans

 Working Capital facilities availed from State Bank of India are secured by a fi rst charge by way of 

hypothecation of Stock of Raw Materials, Stores, Work in Progress, Finished goods and Book Debts.

 Working Capital facilities are also secured through a second charge on the assets created out of the 

term loans including:

 1.  EM of Lease hold rights over 28424 Sq mt plot of land, Plot No.7, Sector I, Industrial Area, I.I.E, 

Pant Nagar,  Uttam Singh Dist and buildings thereon, Uttrakhand belonging to the Company and

 2.  EM over Land [1.90 acres] and Buildings at S No. 519 / 1B 2 Narasingampatti Village, 

Therkutheru, Melur Taluk,  Madurai District belonging to the Company.

NOTE 8 - TRADE PAYABLES

       31.3.2015   31.3.2014

i) To Micro Small and Medium Enterprises  -     -   

ii) Others     134.55  215.70

      Total 134.55  215.70
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NOTE 9 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

       31.3.2015   31.3.2014

(a) Current maturities of long-term debt  29.47  38.53

(b) Current maturities of fi nance lease obligations  - – 

(c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.90 4.11

(d) Unpaid dividends   1.55 1.23

(e) Others-Other Creditors  102.90 56.08

      Total 134.82  99.95

NOTE 10 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

(a) Provision for employee benefi ts

 Leave encashment   0.52 0.23

(b) Provisions

 Taxation Less Advance Tax  1.93  5.42

 Dividend    25.88  12.25

 Dividend Tax   5.27  2.08

               Total 33.60 19.98

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 13 - LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
          31.3.2015   31.3.2014 

a.  Capital Advances

 Secured, considered good  - -   

 Unsecured, considered good  14.25 4.12

 Doubtful    - -

 Less: Provision for doubtful advances  - -   

       14.25 4.12

b.   Security Deposits

 Secured, considered good  - -   

 Unsecured, considered good  12.76   9.03

        12.76   9.03

c.   Loans and advances to related parties

 Secured, considered good  - -   

 Unsecured, considered good  34.59    34.58

       34.59    34.58

d.   Other loans and advances

 Secured, considered good  - -   

 Unsecured, considered good  3.21 4.81

       3.21 4.81

      Total 64.81 52.54

NOTE 14 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 MAT Credit Entitlement  7.46 12.46

      Total 7.46 12.46

  

NOTE 15 - INVENTORIES AS CERTIFIED BY MANAGING DIRECTOR
a. Raw Materials and components at cost  124.59 139.25

b. Work-in-progress at cost  12.11 11.98

c. Finished goods at lower of cost and realisable value  65.24 48.02

d. Stock-in-trade at cost  0.30 0.28

e. Stores and spares at cost  7.60 7.12 

         Total 209.84 206.65
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 16 - TRADE RECEIVABLES
          31.3.2015   31.3.2014 

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from  - -

the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good  163.72  264.16

       163.72  264.16

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from 

the date they are due for payment  - -

Unsecured, considered good  3.08   2.22 

Unsecured, considered Doubtful   1.93

Provision for Doubtful debts  - (1.93)

       3.08 2.22

     Total  166.80  266.38

NOTE 17 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a. Balances with banks

 - In Unpaid Dividend Accounts  1.55  1.24

 - In Margin money  0.01  3.79

 - As Security Deposit for a vendor  2.67 2.67

 - In Current Accounts  4.39 0.06

b. Cash on hand   0.80  0.18

              Total  9.42 7.94

NOTE 18 - SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

a. Loans and advances to related parties

 Unsecured, considered good  – –   

       – –   

b. Others

 Prepaid expenses   3.63  3.16

 Accrued income    –  0.84

 Others     20.95  19.59

                  Total  24.58  23.59
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 19 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
          31.3.2015  31.3.2014

Sale of products    2045.80 1801.35

Sale of services    –  –

Other operating revenues  14.54 12.09

Less: Excise duty    164.35  142.45

            Total 1895.99 1670.99

NOTE 20 - OTHER INCOME

Interest Income - Current Investments  1.11 0.82

Provision for doubtful debts withdrawn  1.93 -

Other non-operating income 

(net of expenses directly attributable to such income)  0.68 0.57

      Total 3.72 1.39

NOTE 21 - COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Stock    139.25  171.30

Add : Purchase (includes processing Rs. 36.25 Cr) 

(Previous year - Rs. 28.95 Crore)  1123.33 1053.96

            Total 1262.58 1225.26

Less : Closing Stock   124.59 139.25

Cost of Materials consumed  1137.99 1086.01

NOTE 22 - (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCK

Opening Stock Finished goods & Traded goods  48.30 54.91

Opening Stock Work in progress  11.98 20.10

Closing Stock of Finished goods & Traded Goods  65.54 48.30

Closing Stock of Work in progress  12.11 11.98

(Increase) / Decrease in Finished goods & Traded Goods  - 17.24 6.61

(Increase) / Decrease in Work in progress  - 0.13 8.12

Total (Increase) / Decrease in Stock  - 17.37 14.73
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 23 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
            31.3.2015  31.3.2014

(a) Salaries and wages  126.92 100.61

(b) Contributions to -

 (i) Superannuation Fund  0.71 0.65

 (ii) Gratuity fund contributions  4.78 0.48

 (iii) Provident Fund and other Fund  8.02 6.43

(c) Remuneration to Whole time directors  8.59 3.27

(d) Staff welfare expenses  15.21 13.44

              Total 164.23  124.88

NOTE 24 - FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense    29.39  41.38

Other borrowing costs  0.50  0.18

              Total 29.89 41.56

NOTE 25 - OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores & Spares  47.31 39.52

Power & Fuel    70.11  70.88

Repairs to building   2.31 2.06

Repairs to machinery   5.47 5.61

Repairs Others    0.64 1.31

Insurance     3.55 2.87

Rates & taxes    17.21  3.51

Telephone & Internet Charges  1.23  0.96

Travelling Expense   8.24 6.30

Exchange Rate Gain & Loss (Net)  4.73 0.84

Bank charges    1.82 2.68

Advertisement and  sales promotion  30.22  15.34 

CSR Activities    0.88 -

Freight Out     60.54  48.99 

Bad Debts  written off  3.07 -

Provision for doubtful debts   -  1.58 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  (net)  0.01  0.03 

Assets condemned   0.33 -

Commission  to non Whole time directors  0.85  0.62 

Director’s Sitting Fees   0.04  0.02 

Commission & Discount  100.54  81.42 

Rent & Lease rentals   16.25  16.02 

Audit Fees     0.20  0.09 

Donation     0.03  0.06 

Consultancy     13.29  12.22 

Warranty Claims   8.62  6.74 

Advance written off   0.91  -   

Other expenses    4.29  2.44 

              Total 402.69  322.11
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26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1. AS 1: DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

 The fi nancial statements are prepared on a going concern concept under the historical cost convention 

on accrual basis and in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 and after 

considering the mandatory accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India.

2. AS 2: VALUATION OF INVENTORIES:

 Raw Materials, stores and spares are valued at cost arrived by applying the Weighted Average 

Method. Cost consists of cost of materials, Cess, Duty & Freight. 

 Work in progress is valued at cost applying weighted average method. Cost includes cost of Materials, 

Labour and other appropriate overheads. 

 Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and realizable value.  Cost for this purpose comprises 

materials, labour and other appropriate overheads and Excise Duty.

3. AS 3: CASH FLOW STATEMENTS:

 The Cash fl ow statement has been prepared under ‘Indirect method’ set out in AS-3 and pursuant 

to the listing agreement with the stock exchanges.

4. AS 6: DEPRECIATION ACCOUNTING:

 The Companies Act, 2013 stipulates systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset 

over its useful life. The Act also prescribes that a maximum of 5% of the cost can be retained as 

residual value and the balance 95% to be depreciated over the useful life of the asset. This method 

has been followed by the Company. 

 All tangible assets are depreciated under the straight line method. The Company has adopted useful 

life specifi ed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except on certain category of assets for 

which the company has re-assessed the same, based on Chartered Engineer’s technical evaluation 

in accordance with Part A of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Assets costing Rs. 5000 or 

below acquired during the year  is continued to be depreciated in full retaining Rs.1 per asset.

 Depreciation is provided for on pro-rata basis on additions and deletions made during the year.  

 The carrying amount of assets as on the fi rst day of the fi nancial year is depreciated over the remaining 

useful life of the asset as per schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Where the remaining useful 

life of an asset is Nil, the carrying amount is written-off in the statement of profi t and loss after 

retaining the residual value.

5. AS 9: REVENUE RECOGNITION:

 Income of the company is derived from sale of manufactured goods and includes excise duty but 

exclude sales tax and value added tax. 

 Domestic sales are recognized net of returns on transfer of signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership 

to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers.

 Export sales are recognized on the basis of date of bill of lading. Export benefi ts, if any, are recognized 

on post shipment basis.

 Interest incomes are recognized using the time proportion method based on the rates implicit in 

the transaction.  Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.
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6. AS 10: ACCOUNTING FOR FIXED ASSETS:

 Gross block of fi xed assets are shown at the costs of acquisition, which includes taxes, duties (net 

of CENVAT and VAT input credits availed) and other identifi able direct expenses incurred. 

7. AS 11: ACCOUNTING FOR EFFECTS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES:

 Transactions are recorded at equivalent rupee values at the exchange rate  prevailing  on  the date 

of transaction or at the rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

 The difference on account of fl uctuation at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction 

and the date of realization is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

 Foreign currency assets and liabilities are restated at the rates ruling at the year end and the difference 

is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

 Forward premium in respect of forward exchange contracts is amortized and recognized over the 

life of the contract.

8. AS 13: ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENTS:

 All the investments are long term investments. Investments are stated at cost.   Diminutions in 

respect of long-term investments are provided for when there is a permanent diminution in the 

value of such investments.

9. AS 15 (REVISED): ACCOUNTING FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

 The Company provides for gratuity, a defi ned benefi t retirement plan, covering eligible employees.  

In accordance with the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides 

a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 

employment, of an amount based on the employees’ salary and tenure of employment.  Liabilities 

with regard to the retirement plan are determined by an independent actuarial valuation at the 

balance sheet date, based on which the Company contributes all the ascertained liabilities to the 

Company’s gratuity fund maintained by ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd

 Leave encashment is provided for based on actuarial valuation.

 Employees above a certain category are participants in the Company’s superannuation fund, for 

which the Company makes annual contributions based on their salaries  to a fund maintained by 

the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

 The Company makes its statutory contribution to the employees’ provident fund to the Employees’ 

Provident Fund Organization of the Government of India.

 The Company makes contribution to the employees’ health scheme for those employees governed 

by the ESI Act. 

 The Company has adopted the revised accounting standard on employees benefi t (AS-15, revised) 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)



80 80

26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation:

(Rs. In Crores)

LEAVE ENCASHMENT
Particulars 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Obligations at period beginning 2.55 2.50

Service Cost 0.46 0.42

Interest cost 0.16 0.20

Actuarial (gain)/loss 1.14 (0.01)

Benefi ts paid (0.86) (0.56)

Obligations at the period end 3.45 2.55

GRATUITY
Particulars 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Obligations at period beginning 12.57 11.74

Service Cost 1.56 0.54

Interest cost 0.96 1.05

Actuarial (gain)/loss 4.18 (0.20)

Benefi ts paid (0.60) (0.56)

Obligations at the period end 18.67 12.57

GRATUITY
Change in plan assets 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 12.08 10.34

Expected return on the plan assets 0.95 0.86

Actuarial gain/(loss) 0.97 0.04

Contributions 0.49 1.40

Benefi ts paid (0.60) (0.56)

Plan assets at the year end, fair value 13.89 12.08

 Reconciliation of the defi ned plan obligations and fair value of plan assets at the year end:

Fair value of the plan assets at the year end 13.89

Defi ned plan obligations at the year end 18.67

Assets/(liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet 4.78

Gratuity cost: 31.3.2015   31.3.2014

Service Cost 1.56 0.54

Interest Cost 0.96 1.05

Expected return on plan assets (0.95) (0.86)

Actuarial (gains)/losses 3.21 (0.24)

Net gratuity cost 4.78 0.49
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Assumptions: Gratuity Leave 

Encashment

Discount Factor 7.82% 7.82%

Estimated Return on Plan Assets 8.00% –

Salary Increase 6.00% 6.00%

Attrition Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Retirement Age 58 & 60 Years 58 & 60 Years

10. AS 16: Borrowing Cost:

 Interests on borrowings are capitalized wherever there is substantial period of time between the 

date of borrowing and date on which the assets are put to use.

11. AS 17: Segment reporting:

 The company operates only in one segment and hence the disclosure requirements of Accounting 

Standard on Segment reporting (AS 17) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

are not applicable.

12. AS 19: Leases:

 The operating lease entered in an  earlier year is for a period of 10 years.

 The details of maturity profi le of future operating lease payments are furnished below:

 a.  The total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease for each of 

the following periods (Net): 

Rs. In Crores

– Not later than one year 10.66

– Later than one year and not later than fi ve years 53.04

– Later than fi ve years 1.01

 b. Total of minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received 

under non-cancellable sub-leases at the Balance Sheet date  Not Applicable

 c. Lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss for the year under the head rent paid 

Rs. 7.12 Crores.

13. AS 20: Earnings Per Share:

 Basic earnings per share are disclosed in the Statement of Profi t and Loss. There is no diluted 

earning per share as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.

14. AS 22: Accounting for taxes on income:

 The company provides for current taxes at current rates under the provisions of the Income Tax 

Act, 1961. Disputed taxes are not provided for, but disclosed in the notes on accounts.  The company 

provides for deferred tax arising on account of temporary and reversible timing differences on 

account of depreciation, employees’ benefi ts and expenditure which are allowed under the Income 

tax act only on payment basis.

26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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15. AS 25: Interim fi nancial reporting:

 Quarterly results are published in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India.  The recognition and measurement principles as laid down in the standard 

are followed with respect to such results.  Quarterly fi nancial results are also subjected to a limited 

fi nancial review by the auditors as required.

16. AS 26: Intangible Assets:

 The company amortizes intangible assets taking into consideration the useful life based on the 

estimates made by the management. Where the management considers that an intangible asset 

does not have a value as at the end of the accounting year, such intangible asset is fully amortized.

17. AS 28: Impairment of  Assets:

 The company makes an assessment on the balance sheet date to determine whether there is any 

indication of impairment in the carrying amount of the company’s fi xed assets. If any such indication 

exists, the  recoverable amounts are estimated and an impairment loss is recognized whenever the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

18. AS 29: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

 a) Provisions for expenses are made on estimated basis, based upon the judgment of the company.

 b) Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but disclosed in the notes on accounts.

 c) There are no contingent assets.

Rs. in Crores

Contingent liabilities : 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 74.88 50.04

Additions / (Deletions) during the year 9.09 24.84

Balance at the end of the year 83.97 74.88

Liabilities disputed and not provided for: 

- Income tax, Sales Tax & Excise duty:

Balance at the beginning of the year 22.74 2.15

Additions / (Deletions) during the year (14.67) 20.59

Balance at the end of the year 8.07 22.74

 

26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

a) The company values Raw materials, Work in progress, Stores & Spares by applying weighted average 

price method. In respect of Raw materials, Cost consists of Material cost, cess, duties & Freight.  In 

respect of Work in progress cost consist of Material cost, Labour and other appropriate overheads.

b) i) All tangible assets are depreciated under the straight line method by adopting useful life specifi ed in 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except on certain category of assets for which the 

company has re-assessed the same, based on Chartered Engineer’s technical evaluation in 

accordance with Part A of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Assets costing Rs.5000 or 

below acquired during the year are considered not material and are depreciated in full retaining 

Re.1 per asset. Consequent to the re-assessment of the useful life of assets based on technical 

evaluation and depreciating assets costing Rs.5000 or below acquired during the year in full 

retaining Re.1 per asset, depreciation charged is lower by Rs.0.74 Crores.

ii) The useful life other than that described in Schedule II adopted are furnished below.

Category of Plant & Machinery No of Years

Plant & Machinery other than Gen set 20

Moulds / Trolley / Weighing balances / Drums / PCI Stand / 

Storage stand / Motors / Pumps 6

iii) A sum of Rs.3.56 Crores towards transitional provisions in respect of assets whose useful life is 

already exhausted as on 01.04.2014  has been charged to statement of profi t and loss.

iv) The company amortizes intangible assets taking into consideration the useful life based on the 

estimates made by the management. Where the management considers that an intangible asset 

does not have a value as at the end of the accounting year, such intangible asset is fully amortized. 

Consequent to the above, the amount amortized is higher by Rs.1.81 Crores.

c) Included under Rates & Taxes is a sum of Rs.11.99 Crores towards sales tax relating to prior years.

d) The company manufactures and sells Two wheeler, Three wheeler, Industrial,  Agricultural and Farm 

Tyres as well as Knobs for direct application.

 The value of main  Raw materials used are as follows:

 Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Materials consumed comprise of :

Natural Rubber 275.76  293.35 

Synthetic Rubber 180.83  200.50 

Carbon   175.19  155.54 

Chemicals  69.77  54.43 

Oils    25.92  22.88 

Beadwire  24.26  20.70 

Fabric   164.32  148.20 

Valves   24.87  24.61

Purchase of traded goods

Tyre   2.46  3.05 

Tube   0.02  0.02 

Flap    0.35  0.43 

e) CIF Value of Imports

 1 Raw Materials 308.00 298.22

 2 Spares  0.04 0.16

 3 Capital Goods 4.13 2.75
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27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
Rs. in Crores

      31.3.2015  31.3.2014

f) Consumption of imported and indigenous 

 raw materials and components

     %   Rs. in Cr. % Rs. in Cr.  

 a) Imported 26.32 289.99 33.55 354.61

 b) Indigenous 73.68 811.75 66.45 702.45

g) Consumption of imported and

 indigenous Stores and Spares %  %

 a) Imported -  22.00 8.69

 b) Indigenous 100.00 47.31 78.00 30.83

h) Earnings in foreign exchange

 F.O.B. value of goods exported  206.57  223.76

i) Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency on

 a) Consultancy  4.21  4.12

 b) Interest   6.19  9.97

 c) Other Matters  3.87  2.29

j) a) Remuneration to Managing Director

  Salaries & Allowances  0.89  0.81

  Commission  2.96  1.23

  Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  0.15  0.13

 b) Remuneration to Executive Vice Chairman

  Salaries & Allowances  0.61  -

  Commission  4.13  1.23

k) Interest Paid includes:

 a) Interest on Fixed Loans  8.40  23.15

 b) Interest Capitilised  -  0.74

l) Tax deducted at Source from Interest  0.05  0.07

m) Stores and Spares consumed includes consumption towards 

 repairs and maintenance of Plant & Machinery  13.58  12.70

n) Details of the Audit Fees

 a) for audit Fees  0.12  0.07

 b) for taxation matters  0.03  -

 c) for Certifi cation  0.03  0.01

 d) for reimbursement of expenses  0.02  0.01



85 85

Rs. in Crores

      31.3.2015 31.3.2014

o) Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

 a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

  on capital account  53.96 10.93

 b) On Letters of Credit opened by Company’s Bankers  27.77 63.23

 c) Excise Duty under Dispute  2.06 2.47

 d) Sales Tax under Dispute  0.64 16.63

 e) Income Tax under Dispute  5.37 3.64

 f ) Customs duty on goods lying at Bonded Warehouse  2.24 0.72

p) Details of Research and Development Expenditure:

 (i) Capital  Expenditure

  a) Plant & Machinery  1.82 5.94

  b) Electrical Installations  – –

  c) Vehicles  0.07 0.05

  d) Computers  - 0.07

  e) Furniture  0.06 0.01

  f) Buildings  0.03 1.96

  g) Intangible Assets  – 0.05 

  h) Capital work in progress (P & M)  0.49 0.19

     Total 2.47 8.27

 (ii) Revenue Expenditure:

  a) Raw Materials consumed  1.17 8.41

  b) Stores & Spares consumed  0.31 0.06

  c) Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances  3.55 2.78

  d) Freight  0.25 0.10

  e) Rent including lease rentals  0.13 0.02

  f) Rates & Taxes  0.28 0.19

  g) Insurance  0.03 –

  h) Travelling expenses  1.60 0.61

  i) Repairs & Maintenance  1.17 1.43

  j) Consultancy - Foreign  3.34 4.60

  k) Consultancy - Domestic  0.13 1.46

  l) Others  2.72 1.69

     Total 14.68 21.35

 Total Research and Development expenditure  17.15 29.62

27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
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q) DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (AS 18)

 Description of relationship and Names of related parties:

 1. Subsidiaries TVS Srichakra Investments Ltd.,
     TVS Europe Distribution Ltd.

 2. Associates TV Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited
     Van Leeuwen Tyres & Wheels B.V., Holland

 3. Joint venturer ZF Electronics TVS (India) P Ltd

 4. Key Management Personnel Sri R Naresh, Executive Vice Chairman
     Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran, Managing Director

 5. Enterprise with Common Key
  Management Personnel Sundaram Industries Private Limited

(Rs. in Crores)

Sl. Particulars TVS 

Srichakra 

Invest-

ments 

Ltd.,

TVS 

Europe 

Distri-

bution 

Ltd.,

T V 

Sundram 

Iyengar 

& Sons 

Private 

Limited

ZF 

Electronics 

TVS (India) 

P Ltd 

Ms Shobhana 

Ramachandhran

Sri R 

Naresh

Sundaram 

Industries 

Private 

Limited

A Transactions for the 

year ended 31.3.2015

1 Purchases 0.84    3.45 
(0.71)  (2.87)

2 Sales 38.10    1.15 
(88.80)  (1.37)

3 Interest Paid

4 Interest Received
(0.18)

5 Services rendered 5.06 

(5.35)  (0.04)
6 Services received 5.54    0.01 4.03    4.74    0.92 

(0.95) (2.21)  (1.23)  (0.04)
7 Loans Accepted / Repaid

8 Loans Given 
(20.00)

9 Loans Repaid
(20.00)

10 Investments  12.22 

11 Sale  of Investments

12 Advance      0.01 

    (1.06)

B
Outstanding as on 

31.3.2015

1 Receivable    34.59       0.64 

  (34.59)      (7.84)  (0.11)
2 Payable       4.26           2.96    4.13 1.35

         (1.23)  (1.23)

Figures in brackets are that of previous year.

27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
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Rs. in Crores

      31.3.2015 31.3.2014

r) Trade Payables and Short Term Provisions includes:

 a) Acceptances  3.39 83.22

 b) Due to Managing Director  2.96 1.23

 c) Due to Executive Vice Chairman  4.13 1.23

 d) Due to Non-Whole Time Directors  0.85 0.62

s) No amount is due as on 31st March, 2015 for credit to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

t) Details of Earnings Per Share

 Profi t after tax Rs. In Crores 103.79 47.45

 No. of equity shares Nos 7,657,050 7,657,050

 Face value of share Rs 10.00 10.00

 Basic Earnings per share Rs 135.55 61.96

u) Terms of repayment of Term Loan

 1. Term loan from State Bank of India is repayable in 66 monthly installments commencing from 

October 2010

 2. Term loan  from State Bank of India is repayable in 72 monthly installments commencing from 

April 2014 (with a moratorium of 12 months)

 3. Term loan from Karur Vysya Bank Limited is repayable in 72 monthly installments commencing 

from October 2011 

 4. Hire Purchase Loan from Sundaram Finance Ltd., is repayable in monthly installments 

commencing from January 2010

 5. ECB Loan from DBS Bank Limited is repayable in 20 Quarterly installment commencing from 

January 2014 

v)  An amount of Rs. 33.80 per share (338%) has been recommended by the board of directors towards 

dividend.

w)  Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/reclassifi ed wherever necessary to conform to 

current  year’s classifi cation.

27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH  As per our report attached
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To

The Members of TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED,

7B, West Veli Str eet

MADURAI – 625001.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements of TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED, 

MADURAI - 625001 (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding 

Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its Joint Venture Company, comprising 

of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and 

Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the signifi cant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 

fi nancial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated 

fi nancial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to 

as “the Act”)that give a true and fair view of the consolidated fi nancial position, consolidated fi nancial 

performance and consolidated cash fl ows of the Group including its Indian Subsidiary Company and Indian 

Joint Venture Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 

the Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.  The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group 

which include its Indian Subsidiary Company and its Indian Joint Venture Company are responsible for 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls, that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audit. 

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and 

auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions 

of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specifi ed under Section 143(10) 

of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated fi nancial statements are free from 

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 

the consolidated fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fi nancial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal fi nancial control 

relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements that give a true 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED,
MADURAI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED,
MADURAI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015 (CONTD.)
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for 

the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal fi nancial 

controls system over fi nancial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  An 

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in 

terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is suffi cient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, which includes its Indian Subsidiary Company and its 

Indian Joint Venture Company as at 31st March, 2015, and their consolidated profi t and their consolidated 

cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the fi nancial statements of the Subsidiaries and Joint Venture Company, whose fi nancial 

statements refl ect total assets of Rs. 247.31 Crores as at 31st March, 2015, total revenues of Rs. 280.44 

Crores and net cash fl ows amounting to Rs. 0.49 Crores for the year ended on that date, as considered 

in the consolidated fi nancial statements. 

These fi nancial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us 

by the Management and our opinion and report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the 

Act, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid Subsidiaries 

and Joint Venture Company, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements below, is not modifi ed in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the 

work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the comments 

in the auditors’ reports of the Holding Company, Subsidiary Company incorporated in India and Joint 

Venture Company incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specifi ed 

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

 a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 

fi nancial statements.

 b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidated fi nancial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 

those books and the reports of the other auditors.
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 c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss, and the 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 

books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated fi nancial 

statements.

 d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 

 e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 

as on 31st March, 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company 

and the reports of the statutory auditors of its Subsidiary Company and Joint Venture Company 

incorporated in India, none of the directors of the holding Company, its Indian Subsidiary Company 

and of its Joint Venture Company incorporated in India is disqualifi ed as on 31st March, 2015 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

  i. The consolidated fi nancial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 

consolidated fi nancial position of the Holding Company, its Indian Subsidiary Company and 

its Indian Joint Venture Company– Refer Note 27(p) to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

  ii. The Holding Company, its Indian Subsidiary Company and its Indian Joint Venture Company 

did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company 

incorporated in India and Joint Venture Company incorporated in India, wherever such amounts 

were required to be transferred.

 For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm Registration No. 004207 S

 K S NARAYANASWAMY

Place : Madurai Partner

Date : 23.5.2015 Membership No. 8593
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED, MADURAI
i) (a) The Holding Company, its Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company TVS Srichakra Investments Limited, 

incorporated in India and Joint venture Company  ZF Electronics TVS (India) Private Limited, 

incorporated in India (hereinafter  ‘Indian Companies’)  have maintained proper records showing 

full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fi xed assets.

 (b) The Indian Companies have a regular programme of physical verifi cation of its fi xed assets by which 

fi xed assets are verifi ed in a phased manner at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verifi cation. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verifi cation is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the Indian Companies and the nature of its assets.

ii) (a) Physical verifi cation of stock of fi nished goods, stores, spare parts and raw materials has been 

conducted by the Management of Holding Company at reasonable intervals. In respect of Indian 

Joint Venture Company, as reported by the Statutory Auditor of that Company, the coverage 

of physical verifi cation of inventories carried out by the Management during the year did not 

include certain raw materials amounting to Rs.38,07,054 as at March 31, 2015 and the frequency 

of verifi cation is not reasonable. In respect of Wholly Owned Indian Subsidiary Company, clause 

(ii) of this order is not applicable having regard to the nature of the company’s business.

 (b) The procedures of physical verifi cation of inventories followed by the Management of Holding 

Company are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of 

its business. In respect of Indian Joint Venture Company, as reported by the Statutory Auditor of 

that Company, the procedures followed by the Management for physical verifi cation of inventory 

are not reasonable and adequate because of the reason specifi ed in Clause (ii) (a) above.

 (c)  The Indian Companies have maintained proper records of inventory.  The discrepancies noticed 

on verifi cation between the physical stock and the book records were not material and the same 

have been properly dealt with in the accounts.

iii) (a) The Indian Companies have not granted any loan during the year.

 (b) A sum of Rs.34.59 Crores & Rs.0.01 Crore has been granted by the Holding Company to its wholly 

owned Indian Subsidiary Company as advance in an earlier year and during the year respectively, 

which is interest free.

iv) The Indian Companies have an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the 

Companies and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventory and fi xed assets and 

for sale of goods and there are no major weaknesses in such internal control system. In respect of 

its Indian Joint Venture Company, as reported by the Statutory Auditor of that Company, except for 

certain items of inventory which are of special nature for which suitable alternative sources do not 

exist, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company.

v) The Indian Companies have not accepted deposits from the public.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Holding Company pursuant to the 

Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and 

records have been made and maintained.  We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the 

records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. In respect of Indian Joint 

Venture Company, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. In respect 

of Indian Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company, maintenance of cost records are not required.

vii) (a) The Indian Companies are generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service 

Tax,  Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable 



94

to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of Income Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, excise duty and Cess were 

in arrears, as at 31.03.2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 

payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues of Income tax, Sales Tax, Excise 

duty & Service tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are furnished below. 

In respect of Wholly Owned Indian Subsidiary Company, there are no dues relating to Income tax 

and Service tax which have not been deposited on account of disputes with the related authorities.

 A. Holding Company

 Rs in Crores

  Forum Where Dispute is Pending Income-tax Sales Tax Excise Duty & 

     Service Tax

  High Court  -   -   0.10

  Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal  -   -   1.58

  Commissioner  -   -   1.71

  Commissioner (Appeals)  3.53   -   0.02

  Joint Commissioner  -   0.01   0.20

  Joint Commissioner (Appeals)  -   0.29  -

  Deputy Commissioner  -   0.08   0.79

  Deputy Commissioner (Appeals)  -   3.34  -

  Assistant Commissioner  -   5.78   -

  Appellate Tribunal  0.11   - -

  Income Tax Offi ce CPC (TDS)  1.73   -  -

  Commercial Tax Offi cer  -   0.02   -

 B. Indian Joint Venture Company In Rupees

  Forum Where Dispute is Pending  Income-tax Sales Tax

  Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax, Madurai   30,360  -

  Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax, Madurai  73,000 -

  Appellate Deputy Commissioner (CT), Madurai   -   2,36,368 * 

  * Includes TNGST Rs.1,50,640 and CST Rs.85,728

 (c)  There are no amounts due and outstanding which are required to be transferred to Investor 

Education and Protection Fund.

viii) The Holding Company does not have any accumulated losses and no loss cash or otherwise has been 

incurred by the Company in the current fi nancial year or preceding fi nancial year. In respect of Wholly 

Owned Indian Subsidiary Company, there are accumulated losses at the end of the year but has not 

incurred cash losses in the current year and the immediately preceding fi nancial year. In respect of 

Indian Joint Venture Company, there are no accumulated losses as at the end of the fi nancial year and it 

has incurred cash losses in the fi nancial year ended on that date but not in the immediately preceding 

fi nancial year.     

ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Indian Companies 

have not defaulted in repayment of dues to Bank.

x) The Indian Companies have not given any guarantee during the year.

ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED, MADURAI (CONTD.)



95

ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF 
TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED, MADURAI (CONTD.)
xi) The Holding Company and Wholly Owned Indian Subsidiary Company has not availed any term loan 

during the year. In our opinion, the term loans availed by the Holding Company during earlier years 

were applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained. In respect of Indian Joint Venture 

Company, the term loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were 

obtained.  

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Indian Companies 

have been noticed or reported during the year.

 For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm Registration No. 004207 S

 K S NARAYANASWAMY

Place : Madurai Partner

Date : 23.5.2015 Membership No. 8593
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015
Rs. in Crores

  Particulars   Note No. 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Shareholders’ funds

 (a)  Share capital   1 7.66  7.66

 (b)  Reserves and surplus  2 274.62  205.75

 (c)  Money received against share warrants

2 Minority interest   30.80  30.69

3 Non-current liabilities

 (a)  Long-term borrowings  3 129.68  178.26

 (b)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  4 22.98  21.99

 (c)  Other Long term liabilities   5 19.05  14.17

 (d)  Long-term provisions  6 7.79  2.42

4 Current liabilities

 (a)  Short-term borrowings  7 112.94  165.73

 (b)  Trade payables  8 188.21  270.06

 (c)  Other current liabilities  9 140.16  104.85

 (d)  Short-term provisions  10 35.66  23.64

      TOTAL  969.55 1025.22

II. ASSETS

 Non-current assets

1 (a)  Fixed assets

  (i) Tangible assets  11 296.48  253.95

  (ii) Intangible assets  11 85.16  89.62

  (iii) Capital work-in-progress  11 14.18 16.19

  (iv) Intangible assets under development  11 4.23 4.27

 (b)  Non-current investments  12 0.53  0.01

 (c)  Long-term loans and advances  13 30.37  18.78

 (d)  Other non-current assets  14 7.49  12.50

 (e)  Goodwill on consolidation   0.03  0.03

2 Current assets

 (a)  Inventories  15 264.19  257.14

 (b)  Trade receivables  16 224.78  328.86

 (c)  Cash and cash equivalents  17 11.35  9.38

 (d)  Short-term loans and advances  18 30.76  34.49

      TOTAL  969.55 1025.22

 Signifi cant Accounting Policies  26

 Notes on Accounts  27

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH As per our report attached

Managing Director Executive Vice C hairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837 DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

   Firm Registration No. 004207 S

Place : Madurai G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN K S NARAYANASWAMY

Date : 23.5.2015 Vice President - Finance Secretary Partner

    Membership No. 8593
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SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH As per our report attached

Managing Director Executive Vice C hairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837 DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

   Firm Registration No. 004207 S

Place : Madurai G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN K S NARAYANASWAMY

Date : 23.5.2015 Vice President - Finance Secretary Partner

    Membership No. 8593

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH 2015

Rs. in Crores

  Particulars   Note No. 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

I. Revenue from operations  19 2176.43 1937.51

II. Other income  20 4.08  1.79

III. Total Revenue (I + II)   2180.51  1939.30

IV. Expenses:

 Cost of materials consumed  21 1148.76  1100.90

 Purchases of Traded goods   183.73  168.90

  Changes in inventories of fi nished goods 

work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade  22  (22.40)  4.29

 Employee benefi t expenses  23 195.92  150.79

 Finance costs  24 31.09  49.64

 Depreciation and amortization expense  11 41.83  25.53

 Other expenses  25 453.32  362.25

 Total expenses   2032.25  1862.30

V.  Profi t before exceptional and extraordinary 

items and tax (III-IV)   148.26  77.00

VI. Exceptional items   11.26  -

VII. Profi t before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)  137.00  77.00

VIII. Extraordinary Items    -   -

IX. Profi t before tax (VII- VIII)   137.00 77.00

X Tax expense:

 (1) Current tax   38.20 16.91

 Less: MAT Credit Entitlement    -  (4.29)

 Net of MAT Credit Entitlement   38.20 12.62

 (2) Deferred tax   0.99 (0.81)

XI  Profi t/(Loss) for the period from 

continuing operations (IX-X)   97.81 65.19

 Minority interest   1.82 -8.61

XII Profi t/(loss) from discontinuing operations   - -

XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations   - -

XIV  Profi t/(loss) from Discontinuing 

operations (after tax) (XII-XIII)   - -

XV Profi t/(Loss) for the period (XI + XIV)   99.63 56.58

XVI Earnings per equity share: (In Rs.)

 Basic and Diluted   130.11 73.89

 Signifi cant Accounting Policies  26

 Notes on Accounts  27
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Rs. in Crores
    31.3.2015  31.3.2014

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Net Profi t before taxation    148.26   77.00
 Adjustments for :
 Depreciation  41.83   25.53 
 Finance Costs  31.09    49.68 
 Security Premium credited on Shares issued by Subsidiary  0.33  -
 Increase in Shareholding of Subsidiary  0.53  -
 Interest received   (1.12)  (0.83)
 Minority Share of Profi ts/loss  1.82  (8.61)
 Adjustment for foreign exchange reserve  (0.47)   1.70
 Provision for doubtful debts withdrawn  (1.93)   -
 Provision for doubtful debts  -  1.61
 Dividend Received  (0.25)  (0.25)
 Assets condemned   0.33   -
 Loss on Sale of Assets  0.01  0.01
 Non operating income  (1.01)  (0.63)
    71.16   68.21
    219.42   145.21
 OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
 Adjustments for :
 Trade Receivables  106.01  (100.34)
 Other Receivables  6.63    9.97
 Inventories  (7.05)   35.84
 Trade and other payables  (29.35)  (58.65)
    76.24   (113.18)
 Cash Generated From Operations   295.66   32.03
 Direct taxes paid   40.01   18.20
 NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)   255.65   13.83
 Extraordinary & Exceptional Items   (11.26)  -
 NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)   244.39   13.83
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
 Purchase of Fixed Assets  (85.92)  (91.02)
 Proceeds from disposal of assets  0.02   0.20
 Dividend received  0.25   0.25
 Non-operating income  1.01   0.63
 Rent received   -   -
 Sale of investments  -   0.01
 Investments Purchased  (0.52)  -
 Interest received  1.12   1.25
 NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)   (84.04)  (88.68)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
 Finance Cost  (34.28)  (49.67)
 Increase in Minority equity  0.11   8.34
 Proceeds/ (Repayment) from short term borrowings  (52.79)   45.17
 Proceeds/(Repayment) of long-term borrowings  (57.12)   40.65
 Dividend & Dividend tax paid  (14.30)  (6.88)
 NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: (C)   (158.38)   37.61
  NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 

CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)  1.97  (37.24)
  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 

OPENING BALANCE   9.38   46.62
  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 

CLOSING BALANCE   11.35   9.38

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH 2015 PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 32 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE
We have examined the Cash Flow Statement of TVS Srichakra Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2015. The statement has been 
prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement and is based on and is in 
agreement with the corresponding Statement of Profi t and Loss and Balance Sheet of the Company by our report dated 23.5.2015 
to the members of the Company.

 For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN
 Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 004207 S
  K S NARAYANASWAMY
Place : Madurai Partner
Date  :  23.5.2015 Membership No.8593

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH
Managing Director Executive Vice C hairman
DIN : 00273837 DIN : 00273609

Place : Madurai G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN
Date : 23.5.2015 Vice President-Finance Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 1 - SHARE CAPITAL

    Particulars 31.3.2015  31.3.2014

Authorised

1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 10.00 10.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up:

76,57,050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7.66 7.66

Subscribed & Paid up

76,57,050 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 7.66 7.66

Subscribed but not fully Paid up

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, not fully paid up.

     Total 7.66 7.66

     Particulars Equity Shares

     No.’000  Rs. In Crores

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  7657.05   7.66

Shares Issued during the year  -   -

Shares bought back during the year -   -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 7657.05   7.66

Other Information :

Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total Share capital

of the company

 T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 27.73% 27.73%

 Sundaram Industries Private Limited 9.79% 9.79%

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares -

Equity shares - The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each 

shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 

is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of 

interim dividend. Each shareholder also has a residual interest in the assets of the Company in proportion 

to their shareholding.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS

    Particulars  31.3.2015  31.3.2014

a. Capital Reserves

 Opening Balance  0.01   0.01

 (+) Cur rent Year Transfer

 (-) Written Back in Current Year

 Closing Balance  0.01 0.01

b. Securities Premium Account

 Opening Balance  0.94 0.94

 Add : Securities premium credited on Share issue  0.33 -

 Closing Balance  1.27 0.94

c. Other Reserves - Surplus on Amalgamation

 Opening Balance  0.46 0.46

 (+) Cur rent Year Transfer

 (-) Written Back in Current Year

 Closing Balance  0.46 0.46

d. Other Reserves - General Reserve

 Opening Balance  32.24  27.29

 (+) Cur rent Year Transfer  -   4.95

 (-) Written Back in Current Year

 Closing Balance  32.24   32.24

e. Surplus

 Opening balance  170.59 133.58

 (+) Net Profi t/(Net Loss) For the current year  99.63 56.58

 (+) Acquisition of additional shareholding during the year 0.53 -

 (-) Proposed Dividend  25.88 12.50

 (-) Div idend Tax  5.27 2.12

 (-) Transfer to Reserves  - 4.95

 Closing Balance  239.60 170.59

f. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  1.04  1.51

         Total 274.62 205.75
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015 31.3.2014

NOTE 3 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

(a) Term loans

 from banks   129.68 171.44

 from other parties - 6.82

                      Total 129.68 178.26

Additional Information :

Details of Security for Secured Loans

a) Term Loan Availed from State Bank of India is secured by exclusive fi rst charge on the assets created 

out of the term loans including 1) Equitable Mortgage of Lease hold rights over 28424 Sq mt plot of 

land, Plot No 7, Sector I, Industrial Area, I.I.E Pant Nagar, Uttam Singh Dist, Uttarakhand and buildings 

thereon, belonging to the company and 2) Equitable mortgage over Land (1.90 acres) and Building at 

Survey No.519/1B2, located at Narasingampatti Village, Madurai.

b)  Term Loan from Karur Vysya Bank Ltd., is secured by hypothecation of Specifi c Plant and Machinery 

located at Pant Nagar, Uttrakhand as well as Specifi c Plant and Machinery located at Vellaripatti Village, 

Madurai.

c)  Term Loan from Sundaram Finance Ltd., is secured by hypothecation of Specifi c Plant & Machinery 

located at Pant Nagar, Rudrapur as well as Specifi c Plant and Machinery located at Vellaripatti Village, 

Madurai.

d)  Term Loan from DBS Bank is secured by hypothecation of Specifi c Plant & Machinery located at 

Vellaripatti Village, M adurai.

e)  The subsidiary company’s bank loan is secured by 95% of the issued share capital of its subsidiary 

undertaking together with a corporate guarantee from the subsidiary undertaking and a fl oating charge 

over the assets of the  subsidiary undertakings.

f) The joint venture company’s term loan is secured by fi rst charge on specifi c fi xed assets acquired out 

of the term loan including mortgage of land and building and second charged on the current assets 

of the company.

NOTE 4 - Deferred Tax Liability/Assets

i) Deferred Tax L iability

 a) On Account of Depreciation on Fixed Assets  25.40 25.82

ii) Deferred Tax Asset

 a) On account of timing Differences in Recognition of Expenditure (2.42)  (3.83)

     Total 22.98 21.99

NOTE 5 - Other Long Term Liabilities

(a) Trade Payables  - -

(b) Others    19.05 14.17

     Total 19.05 14.17
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015  31.3.2014
NOTE 6 - Long Term Provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefi ts

 Leave Encashment (unfunded) 2.93 2.34

 Gratutity  4.86 0.08

     Total 7.79 2.42

NOTE 7 - Short Term Borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

 from banks   112.94 112.39

 from other parties   - -

Unsecured

 from banks   -  53.34

     Total 112.94 165.73

Additional Information :

a. Details of Security for Secured Loans

 Working Capital facilities availed from State Bank of India are secured by exclusive fi rst charge by 

way of hypothecation of Stock of Raw Materials, Stores, Work in Progress, Finished goods and Book 

Debts.

 Working Capital facilities are also secured through a second charge on the assets created out of the 

term loans including:

 1)  EM of Lease hold rights over 28424 Sq mt plot of land, Plot No 7, Sector I, Industrial Area, I.I.E 

Pant Nagar, Uttam Singh Dist and buildings thereon, Uttrakhand belonging to the company and 

 2)   EM over Land (1.90 acres) and Building at S. No.519/1B2 Narasingampatti Village, Therkutheru, 

Melur Taluk, Madurai District belonging to the company.

b. The Loans of foreign subsidiaries in the form of overdraft and invoice discounting are secured by way 

of fi xed and fl oating charges on all properties and assets, both present and future.

c. Working Capital loans of Joint venture company represents cash credit and packing credit facilities from 

banks which are secured by a hypothecation of inventories and receivables both present and future 

and equitable mortgage by deposit of title deeds of the Company’s immovable properties situated at 

Madurai. 

NOTE 8 - Trade Payables

i) To Micro Small and Medium Enterprises  -   0.03

ii) Others    188.21 270.03

     Total 188.21 270.06
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

      31.3.2015  31.3.2014

NOTE 9 - Other Current Liabilities

(a) Current maturities of long-term debt  30.92 39.46

(b) Current maturities of fi nance lease obligations  - -

(c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.92 4.11

(d) Unpaid dividends  1.55 1.23

(e) Others-Others Creditors  106.77 60.05

     Total 140.16 104.85

NOTE 10 - Short Term Provisions

(a)  Provision for employee benefi ts

 Salaries & Reimbursements  0.04 0.71

 Contribution to PF  - 1.81

 Leave encashment  0.52 0.24

 Gratuity (Funded)  - 0.50

(b) Provisions

 Taxation Less Advance Tax  3.95 5.76

 Dividend   25.88 12.50

 Dividend Tax  5.27 2.12

     Total 35.66 23.64
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015  31.3.2014

NOTE 13 - Long Term Loans and Advances

a. Capital Advances

 Secured, considered good -  -

 Unsecured, considered good 14.36 4.88

 Doubtful  - -

 Less: Provision for doubtful advances - - 

     14.36 4.88

b. Security Deposits

 Secured, considered good - -

 Unsecured, considered good 12.80 9.05

     12.80 9.05

c. Other loans and advances

 Secured, considered good - -

 Unsecured, considered good 3.21 4.85

     3.21 4.85

     Total 30.37 18.78

NOTE 14 - Other Non Current Assets

 MAT Credit Entitlement 7.49  12.50

    Total 7.49  12.50

NOTE 15 - Inventories As certifi ed by Managing Director

a. Raw Materials and components at cost  126.00 141.97

b. Work-in-progress at cost 12.49  12.28

c. Finished goods at lower of cost and realisable value 65.48  48.19

d. Stock-in-trade at cost 52.48  47.58

e. Stores and spares at cost 7.74  7.12

f. Goods in Transit - -

g. Others   - - 

    Total 264.19 257.14
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015  31.3.2014

NOTE 16 - Trade Receivables

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from

the date they are due for payment -  0.03

Unsecured, considered good 221.70 326.61

     221.70 326.64

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from

the date they are due for payment -  -

Unsecured, considered good 3.08  2.22

Unsecured, considered Doubtful 0.11 2.03

Less: Provision for Doubtful debts (0.11) (2.03)

      

     3.08 2.22

   Total 224.78  328.86

NOTE 17 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

a. Balances with banks

 - In Unpaid Dividend Accounts 1.55  1.23

 - In Margin money -  3.79

 - As Secuity Deposit for a vendor 2.67 -

 -  In Deposits accounts with Maturity of more than 12 Months 

from the Balance Sheet date - 2.68

 - In Current Accounts 6.32  1.49

b. Cheques, drafts on hand - -

c. Cash on hand 0.81   0.19

d. Others    -   -

      

    Total 11.35 9.38

NOTE 18 - Short Term Loans and Advances

a. Loans and advances to related parties

 Unsecured, considered good -  0.16

     -  0.16

b. Others

 Prepaid expenses 3.63  -

 Others   27.13 34.33

     30.76  34.33 

    Total 30.76   34.49
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

NOTE 19 - Revenue from operations

       31.3.2015  31.3.2014

Sale of products    2063.58 1826.06

Sale of Traded Goods   263.34 242.54

Other operating revenues  15.10 12.54

Less: Excise duty     165.59  143.63

      Total 2176.43 1937.51

NOTE 20 - Other Income

Interest Income - Long Term Investments  1.11 0.83

Interest Income     0.01 0.26

Provision for doubtful debts withdrawn  1.93 -

Exchange Rate Gain & Loss  0.02  0.07

Profi t on Sale of Investments  - -

Dividend income   0.25 0.25

Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly

attributable to such income)  0.76 0.38

      Total 4.08 1.79

NOTE 21 - Cost of Materials Consumed

Opening Stock    141.59 173.36

Add: Purchase (includes processing Rs. 36.25 Cr

Previous year Rs. 28.95 Cr)  1133.17 1069.13

      Total 1274.76 1242.49

Less: Closing Stock   126.00 141.59

Cost of Materials consumed  1148.76 1100.90

NOTE 22 - (Increase) / Decrease in Stock

Opening Stock Finished goods &Traded goods 95.77 92.11

Opening Stock Work-in-progress  12.28 20.23

Closing Stock of Finished goods & Traded Goods 117.96 95.77

Closing Stock of Work-in-progress  12.49 12.28

(Increase) / Decrease in Finished goods & Traded Goods  (22.19) (3.66)

(Increase) / Decrease in Work-in-progress (0.21) 7.95

Total (Increase) / Decrease in Stock  (22.40) 4.29
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Crores

       31.3.2015  31.3.2014

NOTE 23 - Employee Benefi t Expenses

(a) Salaries and wages   155.37 124.26

(b) Contributions to -

 (i) Superannuation Fund  0.76 0.69

 (ii) Gratuity fund contributions  4.86 0.51

 (iii) Provident Fund   8.15 6.54

(c) Remuneration to Whole time directors 8.59 3.28

(d) Staff welfare expenses  18.19 15.51

       Total 195.92 150.79

NOTE 24 - Finance Costs

Interest expense    30.48 46.79

Other borrowing costs   0.61 2.85

       Total 31.09 49.64

NOTE 25 - Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores & Spares  47.39 39.67

Power & Fuel    70.47 71.18

Repairs to building   2.35 2.09

Repairs to machinery   5.58 5.67

Repairs Others    0.78 1.44

Insurance     3.60 2.91

Rates & taxes    17.30 3.61

Telephone & Internet Charges  1.27 1.00

Travelling Expense   8.70  6.75

Exchange Rate Gain & Loss  4.91  1.69

Bank Charges    1.82 -

Business Promotion   30.22 15.34

Freight Out     60.54 48.99

CSR Activities    0.88 -

Bad Debts written off   6.12 3.66

Provision for doubtful debts  0.01 1.61

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets   0.01 0.01

Assets condemned   0.33 -

Remuneration to non Whole time directors-commission 0.85 0.62

Director’s Sitting fee   0.05 -

Commission & Discount  100.63 85.96

Rent & Lease rentals   21.20 16.39

Audit Fees     0.20 0.17

Donation     0.03 0.07

Consultancy     14.01 12.43

Warranty Claims   8.62 6.74

Advances Written o ff   0.91 -

Other expenses    44.54 34.25

       Total 453.32 362.25
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

26  NOTES ON ACCOUNTS ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TVS 
SRICHAKRA LIMITED

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

 Basis of Consolidation:

 a) Basis of Preparation:

  The Consolidated fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 

21 on Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. The consolidated fi nancial statements of the subsidiary company in the UK and its 

subsidiaries have been prepared according to accepted Accounting Standards in the UK.

 b) Principles of consolidation:

  The consolidated fi nancial statements comprise the fi nancial statements of TVS Srichakra 

Limited (the Holding Company), its Subsidiaries and Joint venture company. The Financial 

Statements of all the companies are prepared according to uniform accounting polices, in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the countries of incorporation. 

The effects of intercompany transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

 c) Companies included in Consolidation:

Name of the Company Shareholding

TVS Srichakra Investments Limited 100.00% 

TVS Europe Distribution Limited, UK 58.97%

Universal Components UK Limited 0% *

Wrea Hurst Parts Distribution Limited  0% **

ZF Electronics TVS (India) P. Limited 0% # 

(Joint Venture)

*   (Subsidiary of TVS Europe Distribution Limited, which holds 95% in the company)

** (Subsidiary of Universal Components UK Limited, which holds 100% in the company)

#  (Joint Venture of  TVS Srichakra Investments Limited, which holds 50% in the company)

 d) Accounting convention:

  The fi nancial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis 

and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

 e) Fixed Assets:

  Fixed assets are stated at cost less CENVAT.  Cost includes related duties, taxes, freight, 

installation and interest on specifi c borrowing of an earlier year.

 f) Depreciation:

  The Companies Act, 2013 stipulates systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an 

asset over its useful life. The Act also prescribes that a maximum of 5% of the cost can be 

retained as residual value and the balance 95% to be depreciated over the useful life of the 

asset. This method has been followed by the company. 
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  All tangible assets are depreciated under the straight line method. The Company has adopted 

useful life specifi ed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except on certain category 

of assets for which the company has re-assessed the same, based on Chartered Engineer’s 

technical evaluation in accordance with Part A of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Assets costing Rs.5000 or below are continued to be depreciated in full retaining Rs.1 per 

asset.

  Depreciation is provided for on pro-rata basis on additions and deletions made during the year.  

  The carrying amount of assets as on the fi rst day of the fi nancial year is depreciated over the 

remaining useful life of the asset as per schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Where the 

remaining useful life of an asset is Nil, the carrying amount is written-off in the statement of 

profi t and loss after retaining the residual value.

  Depreciation is provided for at annual rates on straight-line basis, by the foreign subsidiary, 

in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful life. Depreciation is provided for on 

pro-rata basis on additions and deletions made during the year.  

  The carrying values of intangible assets in the foreign subsidiary are reviewed for impairment 

in periods if circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

 g) Investments:

  All the investments are long-term investments. Investments are stated at cost. Diminution in 

respect of long- term investments are provided for when there is a permanent diminution in 

the value of such investments.

 h) Inventories:

  Raw Materials, and stores and spares are valued at cost arrived by applying Weighted Average 

method.Cost consists of cost of materials, Cess, Duty & Freight. 

  Work in progress is valued at cost applying weighted average method. Cost Includes cost of 

Materials, Labour and Other appropriate overheads.

  Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and realizable value.  Cost for this purpose 

comprises materials, labour and other appropriate overheads and excise duty.

  Traded Goods in a foreign subsidiary have been valued at the lower of cost and net realizable 

value, after making due allowance for obsolete and slow moving items.

 i) Cash fl ow statements:

  Pursuant to the listing agreement with the stock exchanges, the company has attached 

consolidated cash fl ow statement to the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated 

Statement of Profi t and Loss.

 j) Revenue Recognition:

  Income of the company is derived from sale of manufactured goods and includes excise duty 

but exclude sales tax and value added tax. 

  Domestic sales are recognized net of returns on transfer of signifi cant risks and rewards of 

ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers.

  Export sales are recognized on the basis of date of bills of lading. Export benefi ts, if any, are 

recognized on post shipment basis.

  Turnover of the foreign subsidiary represents net invoiced sales of goods, excluding value 

added tax received and receivable from the provision of goods to customers during the 

period. Turnover is recognized once goods have been dispatched.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
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  Interest income are recognized using the time proportion method based on the rates implicit 

in the transaction.  Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is 

established.

 k)  Accounting for effects in foreign exchange rates:

  Transactions are recorded at equivalent rupee values at the exchange rate  prevailing  on  

the date of transaction or at the rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the 

transaction.

  The difference on account of fl uctuation at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of 

transaction and the date of realization is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

  Foreign currency assets and liabilities are restated at the rates ruling at the year end and the 

difference is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

  Forward premium in respect of forward exchange contracts is amortized and recognized over 

the life of the contract.

  For the purpose of consolidation of the accounts of the foreign subsidiary, the operations of 

the subsidiary have been treated as non-integral operations and  the income and expenses 

have been translated at the average of rates during the year. The assets and the liabilities 

have been translated at the closing rate on the date of the balance sheet. The difference 

on translation has been taken to foreign exchange translation reserve and disclosed under 

Reserves and Surplus. 

 l) Accounting for retirement benefi ts:

  The company provides for gratuity, a defi ned benefi t retirement plan, covering eligible employees. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the company provides 

a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation, or termination 

of employment, of an amount based on the employees’ salary and tenure of employment.  

Liabilities with regard to the retirement plan are determined by an independent actuarial 

valuation at the balance sheet date, based upon which the company contributes all the 

ascertained liabilities to the holding company’s gratuity fund.

  Leave encashment is provided for based on actuarial valuation.

  Employees above a certain category are participants in the company’s superannuation fund, 

for which the company makes annual contributions based upon their salaries and tenure of 

employment to a fund maintained by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

  The  holding company makes its statutory contribution to the employees’ provident fund to 

the Employees’ Provident Fund Organization of the Government of India.

  The holding company makes contribution to the employees’ health scheme for those 

employees governed by the ESI Act. 

  The holding company has adopted the revised accounting standard on employees benefi t (AS-

15, revised) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

  The Joint venture company operates a gratuity plan which is being administered by Life 

Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Every employee is entitled to a benefi t equivalent to 

fi fteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment 

of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from the company or 

retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefi ts vests after 5 years of continuous service.  
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  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defi ned benefi t 

obligation: (applicable only to the holding company).

Leave Encashment (Rs. In Crores)

Particulars 31.3.2015    31.3.2014

Obligations at period beginning 2.55 2.50

Service Cost 0.46 0.42

Interest cost 0.16 0.20

Actuarial (gain)/loss 1.14 (0.01)

Benefi ts paid (0.86) (0.56)

Obligations at the period end 3.45 2.55

Gratuity                         Rs. In Crores

Particulars 31.3.2015    31.3.2014

Obligations at period beginning 12.86 11.99

Service Cost 1.61 0.59

Interest cost 0.98 1.06

Actuarial (gain)/loss 4.18 (0.22)

Benefi ts paid (0.61) (0.56)

Obligations at the period end 19.02 12.86

Gratuity Rs. In Crores

Change in plan assets 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 12.28 10.50

Expected return on the plan assets 0.97 0.87

Actuarial gain/(loss) 0.98 0.03

Contributions 0.54 1.45

Benefi ts paid (0.61) (0.57)

Plan assets at the year end, fair value 14.16 12.28

  Reconciliation of the defi ned plan obligations and fair value of plan assets at the year end:

Rs. In Crores

Fair value of the plan assets 14.16

Defi ned plan obligations    19.02

Amount recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss during the year 4.86
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Assumptions:

Gratuity Leave Encashment

Discount Factor 7.82% 9.12%

Estimated Return on Plan Assets 8.00% 0.00% & 8.00%

Salary Increase 6.00% & 10.00% 6.00% & 10.00%

Attrition Rate 5.00% & 10.00% 5.00% & 10.00%

Retirement Age 58 & 60 58 & 60

  Investment details of plan assets:

  The holding company contributes the liability as per actuarial valuation to the company’s   

gratuity fund manager, ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd and the joint venture through 

LIC of India.

 m) Borrowing Cost:

  Interests on borrowings are capitalized wherever there is substantial period of time   between 

the date of borrowing and date on which the assets are put to use.   

 n) Segment reporting:

  The holding company operates only in one segment i.e., manufacture of tyres and tubes,  the 

wholly owned Indian subsidiary is engaged in investment activities, the foreign subsidiaries 

are engaged in trading in auto components and the Indian joint venture company is engaged 

in manufacture and trading of electrical switches, sensors, computer peripheral devices etc. 

Disclosure requirements of Accounting standard on Segment reporting ( AS 17) issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are furnished.
Rs in Crores

SN Particulars
Consolidated 

Results 31.3.15

Consolidated 

Results 31.3.14

1 Revenue  

  a) Manufacturing 1914.93 1696.74

  b) Trading 261.50 240.77

  Total 2176.43 1937.51

2 Results  

  Profi t before Tax and Interest  

  a) Manufacturing 165.40 99.03

  b) Trading 10.47 26.32

  Total 175.87 125.35

 
Less: Unallocated Corporate Expendi-

ture
0.60 0.50

  Finance Costs 31.09 49.64

  Total Costs 31.69 50.14

  Profi t before Other Income 144.18 75.21 

  Other Income 4.08 1.79 

  Exceptional Items (11.26) -   

  Profi t/(Loss) before Tax 137.00 77.00 

3 Capital Employed  

  a) Manufacturing 358.60 333.34

  b) Trading 129.30 131.14

  c) Others 35.60 35.92
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 o) Leases:

  The details of maturity profi le of future operating lease payments are furnished below:

  a.  The total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease for 

each of the following periods (Net): 

Rs. in Crores

- Not later than one year 10.66

- Later than one year and not later than fi ve years 53.04

- Later than fi ve years 1.01

  b. Total of minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received

  under non-cancellable sub-leases at the Balance Sheet date Not Applicable

  c. Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profi t 

  and Loss for the period under the head rent Paid   Rs. 7.12 Crores

  The foreign subsidiary has entered into lease transactions which are in the nature of operating 

leases as per the provisions of the above standard:

Future Minimum Lease payments Rs. In Crores

Upto One year 0.37

One to fi ve Years 3.71

Present value of Future Minimum Lease payments

Upto One year 0.37

One to fi ve Years 3.71

 p) Earnings per share:

  Basic earnings per share are disclosed in the Profi t and Loss account.  There is no diluted 

earning per share as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.

 q) Accounting for taxes on income:

  The company provides for current taxes at current rates under applicable tax laws.  Disputed 

taxes are not provided for, but disclosed in the notes on accounts.  The company provides for 

deferred tax arising on account of temporary and reversible timing differences on account of 

depreciation, employees’ benefi ts and expenditure which are allowed under the Income tax 

act only on payment basis.   

 r) Interim fi nancial reporting:

  Quarterly results are published in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India.  The recognition and measurement principles as laid down in 

the standard are followed with respect to such results.  Quarterly fi nancial results are also 

subjected to a limited fi nancial review by the auditors as required.

 s) Intangible Assets:

  The company amortizes intangible assets taking into consideration the useful life based on 

the estimates made by the management. Where the management considers that an intangible 

asset does not have a value as at the end of the accounting year, such intangible asset is fully 

amortized.
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  The foreign subsidiary had capitalized goodwill that arose on acquisition of business, as 

intangible asset and amortizes the same over a period of ten years. However in order to 

comply with the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standards which require goodwill 

to be visited for impairment and not amortized, the company has not considered the 

amortization of goodwill for the purpose of consolidated fi nancial statements. 

 t) Impairment of Assets:

  The company makes an assessment on the balance sheet date to determine whether there is 

any indication of impairment in the carrying amount of the company’s fi xed assets. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable amounts are estimated and an impairment loss is recognized 

whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  

 u) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

  a)  Provisions for expenses are made on estimated basis, based upon the judgment of the 

Company.

  b) Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but disclosed in the notes on accounts.

  c) There are no contingent assets.

Contingent liabilities:     Rs. In Crores

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 80.67 52.94

Additions /( Deletions) during the year   3.42 27.73

Balance at the end of the year 84.09 80.67

Liabilities disputed and not provided for: - Income tax, Sales Tax, Excise duty:

Rs. In Crores

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Balance at the beginning of the year  22.76 2.16

Additions /( Deletions) during the year  (14.63) 20.60

Balance at the end of the year    8.13 22.76
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27.  CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

a) The company values  Raw materials, Work-in-progress, Stores & Spares by applying weighted average 

price method. In respect of Raw materials, Cost consists of Material cost, cess, duties & Freight. In 

respect of Work in progress cost consist of Material cost, Labour and other appropriate overheads.

b) (I)  Holding Company

 i) All tangible assets are depreciated under the straight line method by adopting useful life specifi ed 

in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except on certain category of assets for which the 

company has re-assessed the same, based on Chartered Engineer’s technical evaluation in 

accordance with Part A of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.  Assets costing Rs. 5000 or 

below acquired during the year are considered not material and are depreciated in full retaining 

Re. 1 per asset. Consequent to the re-assessment of the useful life of assets based on technical 

evaluation and depreciating assets costing Rs. 5000 or below acquired during the year in full 

retaining Re. 1 per asset, depreciation charged is lower by Rs. 0.74 Crores.

 ii) The useful life other than that described in Schedule II adopted are furnished below.

Category of Assets Useful Life

Plant & Machinery  other  than  Gen set 20

Moulds / Trolley / Weighing balances / Drums / PCI Stand / Storage 

stand / Motors / Pumps

6

 iii) A sum of Rs. 3.56 Crores which has been adjusted against the retained earnings (towards 

transitional provisions in respect of assets whose useful life is already exhausted as on 

01.04.2014) in the quarterly results published has now been charged to statement of profi t 

and loss. 

 iv) The company amortizes intangible assets taking into consideration the useful life based on the 

estimates made by the management. Where the management considers that an intangible asset 

does not have a value as at the end of the accounting year, such intangible asset is fully amortized. 

Consequent to the above, the amount amortized is higher by Rs.1.81 Crores. 

 (II) Indian Joint Venture Company 

  i)  Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act 2013, and its applicability for 

accounting periods commencing on or after 01.04.2014, the company has revised the 

useful lives of fi xed assets to comply with Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 

2013. Consequently, (i) the company has fully depreciated the carrying value of assets. 

net of residual value, where the remaining useful life of the asset was determined to be 

nil as on 01.04.2014 and has adjusted an amount of Rs.0.02 Crores in the depreciation 

charge during the year and (ii) the depreciation charge during the year ended 31.3.15 is 

lower by Rs. 0.62 Crores

  ii) The useful life other than that described in Schedule II adopted are furnished below.

Category of Assets Useful Life

Plant & Machinery 5 - 15

Furniture & Fixtures 5 - 10

  iii) Assets costing individually upto Rs. 5000 are considered not material and are fully 

depreciated in the year of addition.

 (III) Foreign Subsidiary

 i) The foreign subsidiary provides depreciation at the following annual rates on a straight line 

basis in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful life.
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Category of Assets Basis

Plant & Machinery 20% Straight Line

Furniture & Fixture Between 20% - 33% Straight Line

Motor Vehicles 20% Straight Line

Computer Equipments Between 20% - 33% Straight Line 

c)  During the year under review one of the foreign subsidiaries of the Company acquired another 

company on payment of Goodwill of Rs.11.26 Crores which has been written down during the 

year itself by the subsidiary as the Directors do not expect it to be recoverable.

d) Included under Rates & Taxes is a sum of Rs. 11.99 Crores towards sales tax relating to prior years.

e) The holding company manufactures and sells Two wheeler, Three wheeler, Industrial,  Agricultural and 

Farm Tyres as well as Knobs for direct application. One of the Subsidiary company is an investment 

wing of TVS Srichakra Limited and the foreign subsidiary is engaged in distribution of commercial 

vehicle parts. The Joint venturer is engaged in manufacturing and trading of electrical switches, 

sensors and computer peripheral devices.

 The value of main Raw materials used by the company are as follows:

   Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015 31.3.2014

 Holding Company

 Natural Rubber 275.76  293.35 

 Synthetic Rubber 180.83  200.50 

 Carbon   175.19  155.54 

 Chemicals  69.77  54.43 

 Oils    25.92  22.88 

 Beadwire  24.26  20.70 

 Fabric   164.32  148.20 

 Valves   24.87  24.61 

 Joint Venturer  

 Pivot/Common Terminals 3.54  4.91 

 Contact Brackets 3.66  6.62 

 Case/Covers 2.55  5.20 

 Blade Assembly 2.84  5.73 

 Actuators  0.53  0.68 

 DC Sub Miniature Switches 1.17 1.24

 Valox/Macromelt 0.56 0.28

 Wiring Harness/Wire 1.11  0.67 

 Others   5.49  4.43 

 Purchase of traded goods  

 Holding Company   

Tyre   2.46  3.05 

 Tube   0.02  0.02 

 Flap    0.35  0.43 

27.  CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
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 Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015 31.3.2014

 Foreign Subsidiary  

 Commercial Vehicle Pa rts 179.74  164.26 

 Joint Venturer  

 Computer Peripheral Devices 1.16  1.14 

f) CIF Value of Imports

 a) Raw Materials 324.21 326.22

 b) Spares  0.04 0.16

 c) Capital Goods 8.20 3.43

g) Consumption of imported and indigenous 

 raw materials and components

     %   Rs. in Cr. % Rs. in Cr.  

 a) Imported 27.43 305.14 33.55 380.17

 b) Indigenous 72.57 807.37 66.45 691.78

h) Consumption of imported and

 indigenous Stores and Spares

     %   Rs. in Cr. % Rs. in Cr.  

 a) Imported 0.02 0.01 18.36 8.70

 b) Indigenous 99.98 47.38 65.35 30.97

i) Earnings in foreign exchange

 a) F.O.B. value of goods exported  218.50  252.86

 b) Others   0.86  0.39

j) Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency on

 a) Consultancy  4.21  4.12

 b) Interest   6.19  9.97

 c) Other Matters  4.21  2.48

k) a) Remuneration to Managing Director:

  Salaries & Allowances 0.89 0.82

  Commission 2.96 1.23

  Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 0.15 0.13

 b) Remuneration to Executive Vice Chairman:

  Salaries & Allowance 0.61 -

  Commission 4.13 1.23

27.  CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
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27.  CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.) 

     Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015 31.3.2014

l) Interest Paid includes:

 a) Interest on Fixed Loans 8.40 23.15

 b) Interest Capitalised - 0.74

m) Tax deducted at Source from Interest 0.05 0.07

n) Stores and Spares consumed includes consumption towards 

 repairs and maintenance of Plant & Machinery 13.58 12.70

o) Details of the Audit Fees

 a) for audit fees 0.12 0.07

 b) for taxation matters 0.03 -

 c) for Certifi cation 0.03 0.01

 d) for reimbursement of expenses 0.02 0.01

p) Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

 a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

  on capital account 54.03 16.72

 b) On Letters of Credit opened by Company’s Bankers 27.77 63.23

 c) Excise Duty under Dispute 2.06 2.47

 d) Sales Tax under Dispute 0.70 16.65

 e) Customs duty on goods lying at Bonded Warehouse 2.24 0.72

 f ) Income Tax under Dispute 5.37 3.64

 g) Bills discounted  0.05  –

q) Details of Research and Development Expenditure

 (i) Capital  Expenditure

  a) Plant & Machinery 1.82 5.94

  b) Electrical Installations - -

  c) Vehicles 0.07 0.05

  d) Computers - 0.07

  e) Furniture 0.06 0.01 

  f) Buildings 0.03 1.96

  g) Intangible Assets - 0.05 

  h) Capital work in progress (P & M) 0.49 0.19

  

                    Total 2.47 8.27
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27.  CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

Rs. in Crores

     31.3.2015 31.3.2014

 (ii) Revenue Expenditure

  a) Raw Materials consumed 1.17 8.41

  b) Stores & Spares consumed 0.31 0.06

  c) Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 3.55 2.78

  d) Freight 0.25 0.10

  e) Rent including lease rentals 0.13 0.02

  f) Rates & Taxes 0.28 0.19

  g) Insurance 0.03 -

  h) Travelling expenses 1.60 0.61

  i) Repairs & Maintenance 1.17 1.43

  j) Consultancy - Foreign 3.34 4.60

  k) Consultancy - Domestic 0.13 1.46

  l) Others 2.72 1.69

                    Total 14.68 21.35

 Total Research and Development expenditure 17.15 29.62
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27.  CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

o) DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (AS 18)

 Description of relationship and Names of related parties:

1. Associates T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited

    Van Leeuwen Tyres & Wheels B.V., Holland

2. Key Managerial Personnel Sri R Naresh, Executive Vice Chairman

    Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran, Managing Director

3. Enterprise with Common Key

 Management Personnel Sundaram Industries Private Limited

(Rs. in Crores)

Sl. Particulars
T V Sundra m 

Iyengar & Sons 
Private Limited

Ms Shobhana 
Ramachandhran

Sri R Naresh

Sundaram 
Industries 

Private 
Limited

A Transactions for the year ended 31.3.2015

1 Purchases   0.84   3.45 

 (0.71)  (2.87)

2 Sales   38.10   1.15 

 (88.80)  (1.37)

3 Interest Paid   - 

  - 

4 Interest Received   - 

 (0.18)

5 Services rendered 5.06  - 

 (5.35)  (0.04)

6 Services received 5.54   4.03   4.74   0.92 

(0.95)  (2.21)  (1.23)  (0.04)

7 Loans Accepted / Repaid - 

8 Loans Given - 

 (20.00)

9 Loans Repaid - 

 (20.00)

10 Investments - 

11 Sale  of Investments - 

12 Advance - 

B Outstanding as on 
31.3.2015

1 Receivable   0.64 

 (7.84)  (0.11)

2 Payable   4.26   2.96   4.13 1.35

-  (1.23)  (1.23)

Figures in brackets are that of previous year.
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27.  CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

       Rs. in Crores

      31.3.2015 31.3.2014

s) Trade Payables and Short Term Provisions includes

 a) Acceptances   32.42   113.17

 b) Due to Managing Director   2.96  1.23

 c) Due to Executive Vice Chairman   4.13  1.23

 d) Due to Non-Whole Time Directors   0.85   0.62

t) No amount is due as on 31st March, 2015 for credit to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

u) Details of Earnings Per Share

 Profi t after tax Rs. In Cr. 99.63  56.58

 No. of equity shares Nos  7657050   7657050 

 Face value of share Rs 10.00 10.00

 Basic Earnings per share Rs  130.11   73.89

v) Terms of repayment of Term Loan

 1 Term loan  from State Bank of India is repayable in 66 monthly installments commencing from 

October 2010 (with a moratorium of 6 months)

 2 Term loan  from State Bank of India is repayable in 72 monthly installments commencing from 

April 2014 (with a moratorium of 12 months)

 3 Term loan from Karur Vysya Bank Limited is repayable in 72 monthly installments commencing 

from October 2011 

 4 Hire Purchase Loan from Sundaram Finance Ltd., is repayable in monthly installments commencing 

 from January 2010

 5 ECB Loan  from DBS Bank Limited is repayable in 20 Quarterly Instalment commencing January 

2014 

 6 Term loan obtained by Foreign subsidiary is repayable in bi-annual instalments commencing 

from November 2013.

 7 Term Loan of Joint venturer is repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments commencing from 

February 2015.

w)  An amount of Rs. 33.80 per share (338%) has been recommended by the board of directors towards 

dividend.

x)  The consolidated fi gures of both the years includes those that of TVS Srichakra Limited, TVS 

Srichakra Investments Limited, TVS Europe Distribution Limited and it subsidiaries ZF Electronics 

TVS (India) Private Limited.

y)  Figures of the previous years have been  regrouped /reclassifi ed wherever necessary to conform 

to current year’s classifi cation.

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH  As per our report attached

Managing Director  Executive Vice C hairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837  DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

      Firm Registration No. 004207 S

      K S NARAYANASWAMY

Place : Madurai G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN Partner

Date : 23.5.2015 Vice President-Finance Secretary Membership No. 8593
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE III TO THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OF THE ENTERPRISES CONSOLIDATED AS SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

    Rs. in Crores

Name of the Entity

Net Assets i.e total assets 

minus total liabilities

Share in Profi t or Loss

As % of 

consolidated 

net assets

Amount As % of 

consolidated 

profi t or loss

Amount

Parent 

TVS Srichakra Limited 88.24% 276.27 104.16% 103.77

Subsidiaries:

Indian :

TVS Srichakra Investments 

Limited

0.32% 1.00 -0.32% -0.32

Foreign :

TVS Europe Distribution 

Limited

13.96% 43.72 -4.25% -4.23

Universal Components Uk Ltd 17.87% 55.94 2.39% 2.38

Wrea Hurst Parts Distribution 

Limited

0.05% 0.17 9.95% 9.91

Minority Interests in all 

Subsidiaries

9.84% 30.80 1.83% 1.82

Joint Ventures: (as per 

proportionate Consolidation)

Indian :

ZF Electronics India Pvt Ltd 2.79% 8.72 -1.42% -1.41

Total 133.07% 416.62 112.34% 111.92

Less : Elimination/ 

Consolidation adjustments

33.07% 103.54 12.34% 12.29

Total 100.00% 313.08 100.00% 99.63

SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN R NARESH  As per our report attached

Managing Director  Executive Vice C hairman For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN

DIN : 00273837  DIN : 00273609 Chartered Accountants

      Firm Registration No. 004207 S

      K S NARAYANASWAMY

Place : Madurai G V MAHADEVAN P SRINIVASAN Partner

Date : 23.5.2015 Vice President-Finance Secretary Membership No. 8593
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THE FOLLOWING ARE THE ITEMS PERTAINING TO THE INDIAN JOINT VENTURE 
COMPANY ZF ELECTRONICS TVS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED INCLUDED IN THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
 (Rupees in crores)

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

Percentage of Holding 50% 50%

A)  Assets

WDV of Fixed Assets 8.59 5.33 

Long-term loans and advances 0.14 0.76 

Other non-current assets 0.04 0.03 

Inventories 2.25 3.30 

Trade receivables 3.48 4.39 

Cash and cash equivalents 0.12 0.12 

Short-term loans and advances 2.12 1.46 

B)   Liabilities

Reserves and surplus 8.22 9.63 

Long-term borrowings 2.25 -   

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 0.27 0.05 

Other Long term liabilities 0.01 0.01 

Long-term provisions 0.08 0.10 

Short-term borrowings 1.31 1.91 

Trade payables 1.81 1.87 

Other current liabilities 2.16 0.94 

Short-term provisions 0.13 0.38 

C)  Income 19.04 25.82 

D)  Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 10.76 14.89 

Purchases of Traded goods 1.17 1.14 

Changes in inventories of fi nished goods work-in-progress and 

Stock-in-Trade

(0.14) 0.10 

Employee benefi t expenses 3.35 2.88 

Finance costs 0.32 0.12 

Depreciation and amortization expense 0.79 0.67 

Other expenses 3.97 3.83 

Tax Expenses 0.22 0.75 

E)   Contingent Liabilities

Income tax (CY Rs.46405; PY Rs.25085) -   -   

Sales Tax 0.03 0.01 

Bills discounted 0.03  -   

F)   Capital Commitment 0.04 2.89 
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